
 

 

 

Please ask for: Rowena Whiter 

 
 

 
Direct Dial: 01392 265110 

Email: rowena.whiter@exeter.gov.uk 

Our ref:  

 
To the Chair and Members  
of the Executive 
 

Your ref:  

 

 
Office of Corporate Manager Democratic & Civic Support 

Civic Centre, Paris Street, Exeter, EX1 1JN Tel: 01392 277888 Fax: 01392 265593 www.exeter.gov.uk 

 

 
A meeting of the EXECUTIVE will be held in the Rennes Room, Civic Centre, Paris Street, Exeter at 
5.30 pm on TUESDAY 22 JANUARY 2013 to consider the following business.  If you have an 
enquiry regarding any items on this agenda, please contact Rowena Whiter, Member Services 
Manager on Exeter 265110. 
 
Entry to the Civic Centre can be gained through the Customer Service Centre, Paris Street.  
 
 Pages 
 A G E N D A 
 
 Part I: Items suggested for discussion with the press and public present 

1 APOLOGIES 
 

 

 To receive apologies for absence from Committee members.  
 

 

2 MINUTES 
 

 

 To sign the minutes of the meetings held on 20 November and 4 December 2012.  
 

 

3 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

 

 Councillors are reminded of the need to declare any disclosable pecuniary 
interests that relate to business on the agenda and which have not already been 
included in the register of interests, before any discussion takes place on the 
item. Unless the interest is sensitive, you must also disclose the nature of the 
interest. In accordance with the Council's Code of Conduct, you must then leave 
the room and must not participate in any further discussion of the item.  
Councillors requiring clarification should seek the advice of the Monitoring Officer 
prior to the day of the meeting.  
 

 

4 LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985 - 
EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 

 

 

 RESOLVED that, under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the 
press and public be excluded from the meeting during consideration of item 13 on 
the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined 
in paragraphs 1 and 2 of Part I, Schedule 12A of the Act.   

 



5 2013/14 COUNCIL TAX BASE AND NNDR1 
 

 

 To consider the report of the Assistant Director Finance. 
 

(Report circulated)  
 

1 - 4 

6 HOUSING RENTS 2013/14 
 

 

 To consider the report of the Assistant Director Finance and the Assistant 
Director Housing and Contracts. 
 
Scrutiny Committee – Community will consider the report at its meeting on 15 
January 2013 and comments will be reported. 
 

(Report circulated)  
 

5 - 6 

7 TACKLING HOMELESSNESS 
 

 

 To consider the report of the Assistant Director Housing and Contracts. 
 
Scrutiny Committee – Community will consider the report at its meeting on 15 
January 2013 and comments will be reported. 
 

(Report circulated)  
 

7 - 12 

8 VACANT STUDENT ACCOMMODATION 
 

 

 To consider the report of the Assistant Director Housing and Contracts. 
 

(Report circulated)  
 

13 - 16 

9 EAST DEVON LOCAL PLAN DEVELOPMENT PLAN DOCUMENT - 
CONSULTATION 

 

 

 To consider the report of the Assistant Director City Development. 
 

(Report circulated)  
 

17 - 20 

10 DRAFT CITY CENTRE STRATEGY FOR EXETER 2013 - 2022 
 

 

 To consider the report of the Assistant Director Economy. 
 
Scrutiny Committee – Economy will consider the report at its meeting on 17 
January 2013 and comments will be reported. 
 

(Report circulated) 
  
 
 

21 - 48 



11 CIVIC PROPERTIES - SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT PROPOSAL 
 

 

 To consider the report of the Assistant Director Housing and Contracts and the 
Corporate Manager Democratic and Civic Support.  
 

(Report circulated)  
 

49 - 50 

12 APPOINTMENT OF REPRESENTATIVES TO SERVE ON OUTSIDE BODIES 
 

 

 To consider the appointment of representatives to serve on the outside bodies set 
out in the schedule. 
 

(Report circulated)  
 

51 - 52 

Part II: Items suggested for discussion with the press and public excluded 

No representations have been received in respect of the following item in accordance with the Local 
Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 
2012. 
 

13 FUTURE ROLE AND FUNDING OF THE GROWTH BOARD DELIVERY TEAM 
 

 

 To consider the report of the Strategic Director on proposals for supporting the 
Growth Point Delivery Team for the next three years.  
 

(Report circulated to Members)  
 

53 - 58 

DATE OF NEXT MEETING  

 
 The next scheduled meeting of the Executive will be held on Tuesday 5 

February 2013 at 5.30 pm in the Civic Centre.  
 
 

 
 
A statement of the executive decisions taken at this meeting will be produced and made 
available as soon as reasonably practicable after the meeting. It may be inspected on 
application to the Customer Service Centre at the Civic Centre or by direct request to the 
Member Services Manager on 01392 265110.  Minutes of the meeting will also be published on 
the Council’s web site as soon as possible. 
 

Membership - 
Councillors Edwards (Chair), Denham, Fullam, Hannaford, Mrs Henson, Martin, Sheldon and Sutton 
 

 

Find out more about Exeter City Council services by looking at our web site 
http://www.exeter.gov.uk.  This will give you the dates of all future Committee meetings and tell you 
how you can ask a question at a Scrutiny Committee meeting.  Alternatively, contact the Member 
Services Officer on (01392) 265115 for further information. 

 

Individual reports on this agenda can be produced in large print 
on request to Member Services on 01392 265111. 



This page is intentionally left blank



 1 

EXETER CITY COUNCIL 

 

EXECUTIVE 

22 JANUARY 2013 

 

2013/14 COUNCIL TAX BASE AND NNDR1 

 

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 

 
1.1 
 
 

To set the 2013/14 Council Tax base in accordance with the Local Authorities 
(Calculation of Tax Base) (England) Regulations 2012. 
 

1.2 To seek approval that the Council’s estimate of Business Rate Income 
(NNDR1) for the next financial year and following years is delegated to the 
Assistant Director Finance and subsequently distributed to all Members. 
 

2. 
 
2.1 
 
 
 
2.2 
 
 
 
2.3 

BACKGROUND 
 
In accordance with the requirements of the Local Government Finance Act, 
1992, Exeter City Council as a billing authority will be issuing Council Tax 
bills to occupiers of property in March 2013, effective from 1 April. 
 
As a first step to calculating the Council Tax itself, the City Council is required 
by legislation to determine a tax base by the 31 January for the following 
financial year. 
 
Based on a valuation list received from the Valuation Officer, the calculation, 
in simple terms, involves three steps, namely : 
 

 i. the determination of the number of chargeable dwellings; 
 

 ii. an assessment of disregards, premiums and discounts, and 
 

 iii. the equivalent number of band D properties and a collection rate. 
 

2.4 The calculation of the Taxbase now includes the impact of the new Council 
Tax Support Scheme, which significantly reduces the Council’s income from 
Council Tax but is then offset, in part, by a new Council Tax Support Grant. 
Additionally a number of technical changes have been made.  The Council 
Tax Support Scheme and Technical Changes were approved by the 
Executive in December 2012.   In order to reflect the increased risk of non-
recovery, which may result from the move to Local Council Tax Support, the 
Collection Rate has been reduced to 97% from 98% last year. 
 

3. COUNCIL TAX BASE FOR 2013/14 

 
3.1 The appropriate figures for Exeter are set out in table 3.1 and in Appendix A.  

It is estimated that the equivalent number of Band D properties (Gross 
taxbase) for 2013/14 (including the reduction in dwellings owing to the 
Council Tax Support Scheme) will be 34,866, a reduction of 4,155 over 
2012/13. 

Agenda Item 5

Page 1



 2 

 
3.2 To this figure the estimated collection rate of 97% for the year is applied, 

which results in a Council Tax base of 33,820, a reduction of 4,421 over the 
2012/13 figure of 38,241. 
 

Table 3.1 – Taxbase 2013/14 
 

Taxbase 2013/14 

Gross Taxbase 

2013/14 

Net Taxbase 

(97%) 

 

Taxbase to be used in calculating 

the council tax for 2013/14 

 

34,866 33,820 

 

  

4. BUSINESS RATES RETENTION 

 
4.1 Under the new Business Rates Retention funding from April 2013 the Council 

(as before) has to provide DCLG with an estimate of its Business Rate 
Income for the forthcoming year. However due to the changes in the funding 
and the local/central share, DCLG require the estimate (completed on a 
NNDR1 form) to be compiled and formally submitted by January 31

st
.  The 

Council must also share this information with Devon County Council and 
Devon and Somerset Fire and Rescue Service who are also affected.  DCLG 
have stated that, in their view, the decision to approve the NNDR1 can be 
delegated to the section 151 Officer and this report seeks approval for such 
delegation. 
 

4. RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
4.1 In accordance with the Local Authorities (Calculation of Tax Base) (England) 

Regulations 2012, the amount calculated by Exeter City Council as its tax 
base for the year 2013/14 shall be 33,820. 
 

4.2 That the section 151 Officer is delegated responsibility to approve the 
Council’s NNDR1 return by 31 January 2013. 

 
 
ASSISTANT DIRECTOR FINANCE 

 
 

Local Government (Access to Information) Act (as amended) 

Background papers used in compiling this report: 

None 
 
 

Page 2



E
X

E
T

E
R

 C
IT

Y
 C

O
U

N
C

IL

2
0
1
3
/1

4
 T

A
X

 B
A

S
E

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 A

B
A

N
D

T
O

T
A

L
A

 r
e
li
e
f

A
B

C
D

E
F

G
H

L
IN

E
 1

N
o
. 
O

F
 C

H
A

R
G

E
A

B
L
E

 D
W

E
L
L
IN

G
S

4
8
,9

0
9

1
7

9
,4

2
4

1
3
,8

1
5

1
2
,4

5
2

7
,2

6
9

3
,5

2
7

1
,5

9
3

7
8
8

2
4

L
IN

E
 2

N
o
. 
O

F
 D

IS
C

O
U

N
T

S
 

-1
0
,8

1
4

-2
-3

,9
3
6

-3
,5

5
7

-2
,1

0
2

-7
9
2

-2
6
2

-1
1
2

-4
9

-2

L
IN

E
 3

N
o
 O

F
 A

D
D

IT
IO

N
S

 (
T

E
C

H
N

IC
A

L
 C

H
A

N
G

E
S

)
1
8
8

0
3
7

6
4

4
8

1
9

1
3

4
3

0

L
IN

E
 4

W
H

O
L
E

 N
o
. 
E

Q
U

IV
A

L
E

N
T

 C
H

A
R

G
E

A
B

L
E

  
D

W
E

L
L
IN

G
S

 
3
8
,2

8
3

1
5

5
,5

2
5

1
0
,3

2
2

1
0
,3

9
8

6
,4

9
6

3
,2

7
8

1
,4

8
5

7
4
2

2
2

L
IN

E
 5

F
R

A
C

T
IO

N
 T

O
 A

P
P

L
Y

 T
O

 A
R

R
IV

E
 A

T

  
B

A
N

D
 D

 E
Q

U
IV

A
L
E

N
T

S
5
/9

 t
h
s

6
/9

 t
h
s

7
/9

 t
h
s

8
/9

 t
h
s

1
1
1
/9

 t
h
s

1
3
/9

 t
h
s

1
5
/9

 t
h
s

1
8
/9

 t
h
s

L
IN

E
 6

B
A

N
D

 D
 E

Q
U

IV
A

L
E

N
T

S
 (

P
E

R
 C

T
B

1
)

3
4
,8

9
0

8
3
,6

8
3

8
,0

2
8

9
,2

4
3

6
,4

9
6

4
,0

0
6

2
,1

4
5

1
,2

3
7

4
4

L
E

S
S

 H
A

R
D

S
H

IP
 R

E
L

IE
F

-2
4

T
O

T
A

L
 B

A
N

D
 D

 E
Q

U
IV

A
L

E
N

T
S

3
4
,8

6
6

L
IN

E
 7

C
O

L
L

E
C

T
IO

N
 R

A
T

E
 

9
7
.0

0
%

L
IN

E
 8

E
X

E
T

E
R

 C
IT

Y
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
 T

A
X

 B
A

S
E

3
3
,8

2
0

Page 3



Page 4

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 

EXETER CITY COUNCIL 
 

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE - COMMUNITY 
15 JANUARY 2013 

 
EXECUTIVE  

22 JANUARY 2013 
 

HOUSING RENTS 2013-14 
 
 
 

1. 
 
1.1 

PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 
To recommend a rent and service charge increase from 1 April 2013 for 
Council dwellings and garages.  
 

2. 
 
2.1 
 
 
 

Government Guideline Rent Increase 
 
The Government abolished the Housing Revenue Account subsidy system 
and introduced self-financing in April 2012, which has resulted in housing 
authorities now retaining all their rents, so that they can support their own 
stock from their own income.  The rental policy of the authority post self-
financing is therefore a major factor in the viability of long term business 
plans. 
 

2.2 Whilst the Council is free to set its own rents, the Government has maintained 
the Housing Benefit ‘limit’ rent which limits the amount of rent a landlord can 
recover through the housing benefit subsidy system.  Increases above the 
‘limit rent’ would have an adverse impact on the amount of housing benefit 
received. 
  

2.3 The Government is keen for local authorities to continue working towards the 
social rent policy, whereby convergence with housing associations will be 
achieved by 2015-16.  Rents will then follow the same formula as for housing 
associations; currently an increase of RPI + 0.50% per annum.  Rents set in 
line with the Government’s social rent policy remain below the ‘limit rent’ and 
ensures that maximum housing benefit subsidy is receivable by the Council. 
 

2.4 In order to achieve the Government’s social rent reform it will be necessary to 
implement an increase of 3.1% plus a convergence factor to reflect the 
number of years to rental convergence.  For 2013-14 this equates to an 
average increase of 6%, which equates to £4.05 per week over 52 weeks. 
 

2.5 Rents are collected over 48 weeks, and this will result in an average rise of 
£4.39 per collection week for 2013-14. 
 

2.6 The Government recognised concerns that the social rent reform would result 
in large increases for some tenants and therefore introduced a ‘limit’ to rent 
rises for individual tenants, so that annual increases are limited to RPI plus 
0.5% plus £2 per week in any year.  The proposed rent increase for 2013-14 
keeps rent rises for Exeter City council tenants below the ‘limit’. 
 
 

2.7 
 
 
 
 

The rent per property is calculated using a national formula that reflects 
property size, location, condition and local earnings. 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 5



3. 
 
3.1 
 
 
 
 
 
3.2 
 
 
 
 
 
3.3 
 
 
 
 

Service Charge Increase 
 
These charges cover services and facilities provided by the authority to 
tenants and which are not covered by their rent.  Service charges reflect 
additional services which may not be provided to every tenant, or which may 
be connected with communal facilities.  Different tenants receive different 
types of service reflecting their housing circumstances. 
 
The current Government guidelines are that service charges should only be 
increased by RPI plus 0.50%. For 2013-14 this equates to an increase of 
3.1%.   Increases above this may be made on rare occasions when an 
authority has increases in costs outside its control, such as increases in fuel 
costs.   
 
Service charges will therefore increase by 3.1%, with the following 
exceptions: 
 

• 2.5% increase in respect of cleaning communal areas in line with 
anticipated rises in cleaning contract costs 

• 0% increase in respect of communal electricity at Weirfield House 

• 0% increase in respect of water at Magdalen Gardens 

• 14% increase in respect of heating at Toronto House due to rise in 
consumption and gas costs (heating system programmed to be 
replaced during 2013-14) 

 
4. 
 
4.1 
 

Garage Rent Increase 
 
Rentals of non-dwellings, such as garages, are outside the scope of the 
Government’s social rent reform and therefore it is not necessary to add a 
convergence factor to the annual inflationary rent rise.  An increase of RPI + 
0.50% will be made in-line with rises to most service charges. 
 

5 RECOMMENDED 
 

5.1 
 
5.1.1 
 
 
 
5.1.2 
 
 
5.1.3 

That Scrutiny Committee supports and Executive approves that: 
 
Rents of Council dwellings are increased from 1 April 2013, by an average of 
6% which includes a general inflationary increase of 3.1% together with the 
phased introduction of the Government’s rent restructuring proposals. 
 
Service Charges are increased by 3.1% with the exception of charges 
specified in paragraph 3.3 above. 
 
Garage rents are increased by 3.1% 
 

ANDY STARK 
ASSISTANT DIRECTOR FINANCE  

SARAH WARD 
ASSISTANT DIRECTOR 

HOUSING & CONTRACTS 
 

  

 Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 (as amended) 

 Background papers used in compiling this report: 
 
None 

 

Page 6



EXETER CITY COUNCIL 
 

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE – COMMUNITY 
15 JANUARY 2013   

 

EXECUTIVE 
22 JANUARY 2013 

 

 TACKLING HOMELESSNESS 
 

 
1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT  
 
1.1 To update Members on the flexibilities created by changes to Homelessness Legislation made 

as part of the Localism Act.  
 
1.2 To seek Member approval on the proposed use of these new flexibilities.  
  

2. BACKGROUND 

 
2.1 There has been an historic link between Part 7 (Homelessness) and Part 6 (The allocation of 

affordable housing) of the Housing Act 1996. This link was enshrined in legislation through 
reasonable preference categories. This requires local authority allocations policies to give 
priority for social housing allocations to, among other prescribed groups, people who are 
homeless and to people owed the main homelessness duty under S193. 

 
2.2 The Department of Communities and Local Government advises that the changes to 

homelessness legislation included in the Localism Act 2011 enable local authorities to take a 
strategic view of all suitable accommodation available in their area in relation to homelessness 
duties and social housing allocations, with the potential to make better use of available 
accommodation resources to meet housing need. 

 
2.3 The intended outcome is to enable local authorities to make better use of the private rented 

sector to provide suitable accommodation as a settled home that can bring the homelessness 
duty to an end. This is likely to reduce the need for temporary accommodation and free up 
more social lets for other people in housing need on the housing register.  

 
3. SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS  

 
3.1 The Localism Act will permit local authorities to meet their homelessness duty by providing 

good quality private rented homes. This option can provide an appropriate solution for people 
experiencing a homelessness crisis, whilst freeing up social homes for people in real need on 
the waiting list. The new provisions represent powers available to local authorities should they 
choose to adopt them – local authorities will not be under a duty to adopt the new provisions. 

 
3.2 Sections 148 and 149 of the Localism Act 2011 were introduced through a commencement 

order on November 9th 2012. The new provisions will not be applicable retrospectively. This 
means that applicants to whom a full homeless duty is accepted (i.e., households who are 
eligible for public funds, are genuinely homeless, have a priority need, have not made 
themselves homeless and have a local connection to Exeter) prior to the sections coming into 
force will not be subject to the new power to discharge duty into the private rented sector.  

 
 
 

Agenda Item 7

Page 7



 

3.3 These private rented offers must meet the following criteria,  
 

• The tenancy offered must be for at least 12 months 

• The accommodation must be suitable in the view of the Local Authority.  
 

In order to maximise consistency across Devon the Devon Housing Options Partnership of the 
10 Devon Local Authorities have agreed a property standard which needs to be met in order to 
discharge the homeless duty. This standard will apply for all homeless applicants in Devon. A 
copy of the draft standard is included at Appendix 1 to this report. The standard is due to be 
signed off by February 2013.  

 

3.4 In addition to this, Local authorities will be under a ‘re-application’ duty if accommodation 
provided under the new S193(7F) is lost unintentionally within 2 years. This means we will 
automatically be required to provide accommodation to any household whose duty had been 
discharged into the private sector if they become homeless from the address through no fault 
of their own.  
 

3.5 Applicants have the right to request a review of the suitability of Private Rented Sector Offers 
and to appeal to the County Court on a point of law if they remain dissatisfied with the 
outcome of the review. 

 
4 FINANCE 
 
4.1 It is not considered that there will be any additional cost to the council of implementing these 

changes in the short term (next 12 months), as all applicants receiving this offer would be 
residing in temporary accommodation in any case.  However, if this is successful the numbers 
of applicants moving into private rented properties will increase and this will require managing. 
It would therefore be practical to propose that we seek to make these private rented offers 
through the council’s EXtraLet scheme and therefore retain the management fee which can be 
used to fund addition officer resources if required.   

  
5. PROPOSAL 
 
5.1 Whilst officers hold that this is a beneficial opportunity and we should be seeking to exercise 

this flexibility, its success does depend on supply of suitable properties. Last financial year the 
council accepted 75 households to whom we owed the full homeless duty. This figure was a 
reduction from 111 in the previous financial year. The main reason for this reduction was the 
use of private rented properties to help prevent homelessness. Therefore our current supply of 
private rented options is being exhausted in just preventing homelessness; therefore limiting 
the opportunity to use it to discharge the duty we then may go onto owe those whose 
homelessness could not be prevented. Therefore, it is not expected that the offer of private 
rented accommodation will be made to all homeless applicants, as we will not have the supply 
of suitable properties. However it is proposed that we use it whenever a suitable property 
becomes available and as long as the property offered is suitable we make the offer regardless 
of the households’ cause of homelessness or household composition. When a property 
becomes available we will seek to offer it the most recently accepted homeless applicant to 
minimise disruption to those who have been waiting longest, are settled in temporary 
accommodation and are closest to receiving an offer of permanent affordable housing. 
However members may wish to comment on this and make an alternative proposal.  

 
5.2 As stated above it is proposed that the majority of these offers are made through the EXtraLet 

scheme as it then provides an income to the council which enables us to resource the 
management of the tenancies and provide greater security to private tenants. 

  

Page 8



 

5.3 However there maybe cases where the council if approached by a private landlord who wishes 
to find a tenant but manage the property themselves. We propose that this is acceptable as 
long as the property condition meets that outlined by in Appendix 1 and the landlord is 
considered to be a fit and proper person after consultation with the council’s Environmental 
Health Team.   

 
6 RECOMMENDED that 
 
 Scrutiny Committee:- 
 
 a) notes this report; and  

b) in respect of 5.1, advises whether this is appropriate or whether these offers should be 
made differently; and 

 
requests Executive to:- 

 
 1) approve the use of the new flexibilities as proposed above; 
 2) consider and support the Committee’s views in respect of 5.1; and 

3) agree that officers monitor the use of the flexibilities and report back to Members in 12 
months time.  

 
 
SARAH WARD 
Assistant Director Housing and Contracts  

 

S:PA/LP/Cttee/113SCC5 
3.1.13 

 

 

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 (as amended)  
Background papers used in compiling this report:  
 
None 

Page 9



Page 10

This page is intentionally left blank



�
�

�

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 O

n
e

 -
 

 P
R

O
P

O
S

A
L

 T
O

 M
A

K
E

 U
S

E
 O

F
 N

E
W

 F
L

E
X

IB
IL

IT
IE

S
 M

A
D

E
 A

V
A

IL
A

B
L

E
 U

N
D

E
R

 T
H

E
 L

O
C

A
L

IS
M

 A
C

T
 T

O
 T

A
C

K
L

E
 H

O
M

E
L

E
S

S
N

E
S

S
  

D
e

v
o

n
 m

in
im

u
m

 p
ro

p
e

rt
y
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
s

 –
 D

e
c

e
m

b
e

r 
2

0
1

2
 –

 d
e

ta
il
e

d
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
 

T
h

is
 s

ta
n
d

a
rd

 h
a

s
 b

e
e
n

 d
e

v
e

lo
p
e

d
 b

y
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
 o

f 
th

e
 D

H
O

P
 a

n
d

 D
P

S
H

G
; 

p
ri
o

r 
to

 t
h
e

 p
u

b
lic

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
T

h
e

 H
o

m
e

le
s
s
n

e
s
s
 (

S
u

it
a
b

ili
ty

 

o
f 

A
c
c
o
m

m
o
d

a
ti
o
n

) 
(E

n
g
la

n
d

) 
O

rd
e

r 
2

0
1
2

 (
S

I 
2

6
0
1

).
  

T
h
e

 D
e

v
o

n
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
 d

if
fe

rs
 s

lig
h

tl
y
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 S

u
it
a

b
ili

ty
 O

rd
e

r,
 b

u
t 

th
e
 s

ta
n
d

a
rd

 s
e

t 
is

 h
ig

h
e

r.
  

D
e

v
o

n
 m

in
im

u
m

 s
ta

n
d

a
rd

 
E

x
p

la
n

a
to

ry
 n

o
te

s
 

1
. 

P
ro

p
e
rt

y
 t
o
 b

e
 f
re

e
 f
ro

m
 C

a
te

g
o
ry

 1
 h

a
z
a
rd

s
 (

 a
s
 

d
e
fi
n
e
d
 b

y
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 H

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 S

a
fe

ty
 R

a
ti
n
g
 S

y
s
te

m
) 

a
n
d
 i
n
 r

e
a
s
o
n
a
b
le

 t
e
n
a
n
ta

b
le

 c
o
n
d
it
io

n
 

R
e
a
s
o
n
a
b
le

 t
e
n
a
n
ta

b
le

 c
o
n
d
it
io

n
 m

e
a
n
s
:

•
 

M
u
s
t 

b
e
 i
n
 a

 r
e
a
s
o
n
a
b
le

 s
ta

te
 o

f 
re

p
a
ir
 

•
 

Is
 c

le
a
n
 a

n
d
 i
n
 g

o
o
d
 d

e
c
o
ra

ti
v
e
 o

rd
e
r 

•
 

F
lo

o
r 

c
o
v
e
ri
n
g

s
 a

re
 i
n
 a

 r
e
a
s
o
n
a
b
le

 c
o
n
d
it
io

n
 a

n
d
 c

le
a
n
. 
T

h
e
 f
lo

o
r 

s
u
rf

a
c
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 k

it
c
h
e
n
 m

u
s
t 

b
e
 r

e
a
d
ily

 c
le

a
n
s
a
b
le

. 

•
 

 T
h
e
re

 a
re

 r
e
a
s
o
n
a
b
ly

 m
o
d
e
rn

 k
it
c
h
e
n
 f
a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 (

le
s
s
 t

h
a
n
 2

0
 

y
e
a
rs

 o
ld

),
 w

it
h
 a

d
e
q

u
a
te

 s
p
a
c
e
, 
fo

o
d
 s

to
ra

g
e
 a

n
d
 p

re
p
a
ra

ti
o
n
 

s
u
rf

a
c
e
s
 a

n
d
 a

 s
u
it
a
b
le

 l
a
y
o
u
t.

  

•
 

T
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 r
e
a
s
o
n
a
b
ly

 m
o
d
e
rn

 (
le

s
s
 t
h
a
n
 3

0
 y

e
a
rs

 o
ld

) 
a
n
d
 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

ly
 l
o
c
a
te

d
, 
b
a
th

ro
o
m

 a
n
d
 W

C
 

•
 

A
ll 

fu
rn

it
u
re

 s
u
p
p
lie

d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 l
a
n
d
lo

rd
 c

o
m

p
lie

s
 w

it
h
 F

u
rn

it
u
re

 a
n
d
 

F
u
rn

is
h
in

g
s
 (

F
ir
e
 S

a
fe

ty
) 

R
e
g

u
la

ti
o
n
s
 1

9
8
8
 

•
 

E
le

c
tr

ic
a
l 
e
q

u
ip

m
e
n
t 

s
u
p
p
lie

d
 h

a
s
 a

n
 u

p
 t

o
 d

a
te

 P
A

T
 

•
 

G
a
rd

e
n
 a

n
d
 o

u
ts

id
e
 a

re
a
s
 a

re
 i
n
 g

o
o
d
 o

rd
e
r,

 w
it
h
 s

u
it
a
b
le

 

w
a
s
te

/r
e
c
y
c
lin

g
 s

to
ra

g
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 

Page 11



�
�

�2
. 

E
n
e
rg

y
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 c

e
rt

if
ic

a
te

 (
E

P
C

) 
p
ro

v
id

e
d
 

B
a
n
d
 E

 o
r 

h
ig

h
e
r 

ra
ti
n
g
 i
e
 3

9
 o

r 
a
b
o
v
e
. 

3
. 

S
m

o
k
e
 d

e
te

c
to

r 
p
re

s
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 s

u
it
a
b
ly

 s
it
e
d
 o

n
 e

v
e
ry

 
fl
o
o
r 

o
f 
th

e
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y
 

M
u
s
t 

b
e
 1

0
 y

e
a
r 

s
e
a
le

d
 b

a
tt

e
ry

 u
n
it
, 
o
r 

p
re

fe
ra

b
ly

 h
a
rd

 w
ir
e
d
. 

4
. 

S
u
it
a
b
ly

 l
o
c
a
te

d
 a

u
d
ib

le
 c

a
rb

o
n
 m

o
n
o
x
id

e
 d

e
te

c
to

rs
 a

re
 

p
re

s
e
n
t,
 w

it
h
 B

ri
ti
s
h
 o

r 
E

u
ro

p
e
a
n
 K

it
e
m

a
rk

 o
r 

L
o
s
s
 

P
re

v
e
n
ti
o
n
 C

e
rt

if
ic

a
te

 b
o
a
rd

 (
L
P

C
B

) 
a
p
p
ro

v
a
l 
m

a
rk

. 

N
e
e
d
e
d
 w

h
e
re

 s
o
lid

 f
u
e
l 
o
r 

g
a
s
 a

p
p
lia

n
c
e
s
 p

re
s
e
n
t,
 b

u
t 
n
o
t 
fo

r 
b
a
la

n
c
e
d
 

fu
e
l 
o
u
tl
e
ts

. 
A

n
n
u
a
l 
te

s
ti
n
g
 o

f 
d
e
te

c
to

rs
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
d
. 

T
h
e
 m

a
n
u
fa

c
tu

re
r’
s
 i
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
s
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 f
o
llo

w
e
d
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

lo
c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 d

e
te

c
to

rs
. 
 

5
. 

A
 g

a
s
 c

e
rt

if
ic

a
te

 i
s
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
d
  

A
ll 

g
a
s
 a

p
p
lia

n
c
e
s
 t

e
s
te

d
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 
a
n
n
u
a
lly

 

6
. 

A
n
 e

le
c
tr

ic
a
l 
c
e
rt

if
ic

a
te

 i
s
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
d
  

D
a
te

d
 w

it
h
in

 l
a
s
t 

5
 y

e
a
rs

, 
w

it
h
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 
1
2
 m

o
n
th

s
 r

e
m

a
in

in
g

 

7
. 

B
e
d
ro

o
m

 s
iz

e
s
 a

re
 a

d
e
q
u
a
te

 f
o
r 

th
e
 s

ta
te

d
 o

c
c
u
p
a
ti
o
n
 

M
in

im
u
m

 r
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
e
d
 b

e
d
ro

o
m

 s
iz

e
s
 a

re
: 

•
 

S
in

g
le

 p
e
rs

o
n
 –

 6
.5

 s
q

 m
e
tr

e
s
 f

o
r 

b
e
d
ro

o
m

 w
h
e
re

 c
o
m

m
u
n
a
l 

liv
in

g
 r

o
o
m

 a
v
a
ila

b
le

 o
r 

8
 s

q
 m

 w
h
e
re

 s
in

g
le

 b
e
d
s
it
 w

it
h
 n

o
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
a
l 
liv

in
g

 r
o
o
m

 

•
 

T
w

o
 p

e
rs

o
n
 –

 1
0
.2

2
 s

q
 m

e
tr

e
s
 =

 1
1
0
 s

q
 f
t�

��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��

B
e
d
ro

o
m

 s
ta

n
d
a
rd

–
 s

a
m

e
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

 a
s
 H

o
u
s
in

g
  
B

e
n
e

fi
t 
/D

e
v
o
n
 H

o
m

e
 C

h
o
ic

e
: 

•
 

C
h
ild

re
n

 c
a
n
 s

h
a
re

 a
 b

e
d
ro

o
m

 u
p
 u

n
ti
l 
1

0
 y

e
a
rs

 o
f 

a
g
e

 r
e
g
a
rd

le
s
s
 o

f 
s
e
x
 

•
 

S
a
m

e
 s

e
x
 c

h
ild

re
n
 o

r 
a

d
o

le
s
c
e
n
ts

 c
a
n
 s

h
a
re

 a
 b

e
d
ro

o
m

 u
p
 t
o
 2

1
 y

e
a
rs

 
o
f 

a
g
e
  

•
 

P
e
o

p
le

 r
e
q
u

ir
e
 t

h
e

ir
 o

w
n

 r
o

o
m

 w
h
e
n
 t

h
e

y
 a

re
 2

1
 y

e
a
rs

 o
f 

a
g
e
  

8
. 

S
e
p
a
ra

te
 e

le
c
tr

ic
 a

n
d
 g

a
s
 m

e
te

rs
 a

re
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 t

o
 t
h
e
  

p
ro

p
e
rt

y
, 

w
h
e
re

 t
h
e
s
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

re
 s

u
p
p
lie

d
. 

A
 s

e
p
a
ra

te
 w

a
te

r 
m

e
te

r 
is

 d
e
s
ir
a
b
le

, 
b
u
t 
if
 n

o
t 
p
re

s
e
n
t,
 

th
e
 w

a
te

r 
c
h
a
rg

e
 p

a
y
a
b
le

 b
y
 t

h
e
 t
e
n
a
n
t 
is

 c
le

a
r.

  

Page 12



EXETER CITY COUNCIL 
 

EXECUTIVE 
22 JANUARY 2013 

 
VACANT STUDENT ACCOMMODATION 

 
1 PURPOSE OF REPORT 
  
1.1 To seek approval to negotiate a lease on two blocks of student accommodation 

(96 bedspaces in total) for use as additional short term housing options for single 
people and couples, managed partly through the council’s EXtraLet scheme and 
partly as leased temporary accommodation. 

  
2 BACKGROUND 
  
2.1 There is currently an oversupply of purpose-built student accommodation for the 

University and the university expects this to continue for several years. 
  
2.2 The University has approached the Council and offered us the opportunity to take 

a medium term lease of 10 years or to purchase the freehold of 96 bedspaces of 
student accommodation across two sites in the city. 

  
2.3 Both sites are owned by Signpost Homes and leased to the University until 2029 & 

2032.  A lease would need to be negotiated with the University. 
  
 Housing Need 

2.4 There is a compelling need to increase the supply of social rented housing in the 
city. In the last 12 months only 457 properties were let in Exeter through Devon 
Home Choice. As of 1 December 2012 the housing register was as follows: 

 
HOUSING NEED  

 A B C D E Total 

1 Bed 4 253 124 1703 1099 3183 

2 Bed 3 293 300 189 781 1566 

3 Bed 0 93 163 59 234 549 

4 Bed 0 43 35 12 24 114 

5 Bed 0 5 1 1 3 10 

6 Bed 0 0 0 0 1 1 

7 Bed 0 0 0 0 0 0 

8 Bed 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Total 7 687 623 1964 2142 5423  
 
2.5 

 
The need for one bedroom accommodation accounts for over half the households 
on the register. Within this, the large majority of applicants are in the lower housing 
needs bands. However, the assessment of their housing need is made in line with 
the Devon Home Choice policy and makes no allowances for affordability of the 
accommodation. 

  
2.6 We have written to all applicants in need of a one bedroom property on the register 

in Bands C, D and E asking if they would be interested in the offer of private 

Agenda Item 8

Page 13



accommodation under our management.  We have received 73 positive 
responses.  Whilst this appears disappointing, this offer was made prior to the 
university’s offers and therefore was an enquiry as to whether the applicant would 
be interested in accommodation with a shared kitchen and bathroom. Given the 
high demand for affordable good quality well managed rented accommodation in 
the city it is likely that there would be additional demand and also wider demand 
amongst people not on the housing register.  

  
 Completions 

2.7 Over the past three years, 473 new affordable homes have been provided in 
partnership with registered providers, developers and the voluntary sector. These 
new homes are valuable to help to meet the need, but more homes are required. 
Only a certain amount of new affordable housing can be delivered via s106 
planning agreements, due to the way that the volume house builders wish to 
control the flow of new housing into the market place. 

  
 Use of the Accommodation 

2.8 Most of the accommodation would be managed under the EXtraLet scheme to 
provide affordable private rented housing for those currently living at home with 
family and unable to afford to rent or buy themselves, typically those in Bands D 
and E who face a long wait for housing with Devon Home Choice.  

  
2.9 Additionally, a proportion of the properties would replace current bed and breakfast 

provision and be used as a combination of homeless prevention and temporary 
accommodation for single people who are either accepted as homeless or at risk 
of being made homeless. It is not proposed that these schemes should replace the 
use of Shauls Court where we would continue to accommodate more chaotic and 
high needs homeless applicants.  

  
2.10 It is proposed that the proportion should be 70% under the EXtraLet Scheme and 

30% used as temporary accommodation. 
  
 The Accommodation 

2.10 Two former student blocks have been offered.  Bonhay House is a 31 bed scheme 
made up of 24 studio flats and 7 en-suite rooms with a shared kitchen. King 
Edwards Studios is a 65 bed scheme made up of all studio flats. 

  
 Valuation 

2.11 A valuation exercise has been undertaken both on the basis of a 10 year lease 
and a freehold purchase. 

  
3 PLANNING ISSUES 
  
3.1 The occupation of the smaller Bonhay House scheme is unrestricted and there 

would be no issue in using this property for social housing purposes. 
  
3.2 The occupation of King Edwards Studios is limited to students by a s106 

agreement. This s106 agreement would need to be varied in order to use this 
property for social housing purposes.  This would need to be in place before we 
took over the property. 

  
 
 

Page 14



4 FINANCE 
  
4.1 This report is seeking permission to progress negotiations and we are not yet at a 

point where the university has committed to a lease cost. We would not however 
undertake any agreement unless it was cost neutral to the council, that is to say 
that the rental income (factoring in voids and bad debt) would exceed the lease, 
management and maintenance costs throughout the duration of the lease. This 
would certainly be more cost effective than providing alternative temporary 
accommodation for single people in bed and breakfasts where the council makes 
an average weekly loss of at least £100 per person.  By using 32 of these 
bedspaces for temporary accommodation the council will make a modest saving of 
around £2,500.  

  
4.2 We would also seek to secure break clauses within the lease to mitigate against 

any risk to the council if, for example, the schemes did not prove popular and were 
under-occupied. Without agreements on these break clauses we would not enter 
in any agreement with the university.  

  
4.3 The freehold purchase of this accommodation would, most likely, cost in excess of 

£3m and there is no provision for this in the capital budget.  This option is not 
recommended. 

  
5 PROPOSAL 
  
5.1 To pursue a change of use for King Edwards Studios so that it can be used for 

social housing purposes 
  
5.2 To negotiate a 10 year lease with the University for both sites, with the caveats set 

out at 4.1 and 4.2.  
  
6 RECOMMENDED 
  
6.1 That Executive approves: 
  
 (1) The negotiation of a 10 year lease on both schemes, subject to the 

variation of the s106 and to the schemes being cost-neutral to the 
council 

(2) A request to the Assistant Director City Development and the Chair of 
Planning Committee to agree a variation of the s106 agreement on 
King Edwards Studios 

(3) That the accommodation should be used mainly for properties 
managed under the EXtraLet scheme with the remaining properties 
being used as temporary accommodation to prevent homelessness 

 
 
 
SARAH WARD 
ASSISTANT DIRECTOR HOUSING AND CONTRACTS 
 
 
Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1972 (as amended) 
Background papers used in compiling this report:- 

None 

Page 15



Page 16

This page is intentionally left blank



EXETER CITY COUNCIL 

EXECUTIVE 
22 JANUARY 2013 

EAST DEVON LOCAL PLAN DEVELOPMENT PLAN DOCUMENT 
CONSULTATION ON PROPOSED SUBMISSION PLANNING DOCUMENT 

1 PURPOSE OF REPORT 

1.1 To formulate a response to the ‘Proposed Submission’ document that is being 
published by East Devon District Council. 

  
2 BACKGROUND 

2.1 Members will recall that East Devon District Council consulted on a Consultation 
Draft Local Plan early last year.  Executive approved a response to that document in 
February.  East Devon has since taken an amended version of that document 
forward and approved their Local Plan 2006 - 2026 for submission to the Secretary 
of State for public examination. 

  
2.2 East Devon had made some significant changes in preparation of the Consultation 

Draft Local Plan.  7,400 houses were proposed for the West End; a significant 
reduction from the 11,500 that the draft Regional Spatial Strategy’s evidence base 
deemed necessary to support the prosperity of the sub-region.    

  
2.3 Exeter City Council’s response to the Consultation Draft Local Plan expressed 

concern over the reduction in the scale of growth and urged that growth should be 
maximised in accordance with the principles of sustainable development.  It also 
pointed to the need for key infrastructure investments and the relative importance of 
enabling development (eg. land north of Blackhorse facilitating the Tithebarn Lane 
Link Road). 

  
2.4 This paper concentrates on proposals for growth at East Devon’s West End (shown 

on the map at Appendix 1).  The economic prosperity of the sub region is inextricably 
linked to the growth of the City.  Such growth is now, and will be increasingly in the 
future, dependent upon policies adopted in adjoining authorities, particularly East 
Devon.  

  
3 SCALE OF HOUSING GROWTH 

3.1 Through their Proposed Submission document, East Devon intend to carry forward 
the housing proposals that were set out in the earlier Consultation Draft.  This means 
7,400 new houses in the West End to 2026 as follows: 

Cranbrook:  6,000 
North of Blackhorse:  600 
North of Pinhoe:  800 

3.2 Beyond allocations and planning permissions at Cranbrook for 6,000 houses to 2026 
the Proposed Submission document does now indicate provision for an additional 
1,500 houses beyond the plan period (7,500 in total).  These are envisaged to be 
delivered on the South West side of the new settlement towards Exeter between 
2026 and 2031.  

Agenda Item 9

Page 17



3.3 However, other expansion options have been discounted.  Previous proposals for a 
new settlement of up to 4,000 dwellings along the A3052 (Sidmouth bound) are 
considered undeliverable because of prohibitive infrastructure costs (principally 
highways and transport links).  This justification appears reasonable and the District 
Council do commit to keep options for development in this area under review. 

3.4 More significantly, earlier ‘Preferred Options’ consultation stage proposals for 2,200 
homes north of Blackhorse have also been diluted.  In that area the Proposed 
Submission Local Plan now shows only 600 dwellings, which have been brought 
forward through the recent ‘Tithebarn Green’ planning application.  The application 
was supported by Exeter City Council Planning committee in December and East 
Devon resolved to approve it this month.   
       

3.5 Whilst the Proposed Submission Local Plan does maintain significant levels of 
proposed West End growth in the face of substantial opposition to such 
development, it will be important that there is sufficient capacity to meet the sub-
region’s growth potential.  Identifying additional development locations (including 
land north of Blackhorse) as ‘reserve’ sites would help spread the risk of under-
delivery at Cranbrook and would mean that additional housing could be brought 
forward should a shortfall arise. 

4 EMPLOYMENT PROVISION 

4.1 The scale of new employment land proposed for the West End remains consistent 
with previous iterations of the plan.  It includes provision for 85ha as follows: 

Cranbrook:  15ha 
Exeter Science Park:  25ha 
Skypark:  40ha 
Airport Business Park:  5ha 

4.2 This scale of proposed development broadly accords with evidence prepared jointly 
on behalf of Exeter City Council and East Devon District Council. 

5 TIMELY INFRASTRUCTURE PROVISION 

5.1 The Proposed Submission East Devon Local Plan incorporates a firm commitment to 
securing investment in the new infrastructure that will be critical to sustainable 
delivery of growth in the West End.  A strong track record of delivery has already 
been established through early on site projects like the energy centre adjacent to 
Cranbrook and other enabling infrastructure including the M5 J29 improvement 
works. 

  
5.2 The Plan incorporates a commitment to key infrastructure.  This includes the ‘Phase 

3 Tithebarn Lane Link Road’; strategic green infrastructure such as the Clyst Valley 
Regional Park and strategic cycle routes, both of which will connect to facilities 
within Exeter. 

5.3 Such commitments are strong but detail that will be set out in an Infrastructure 
Delivery Plan has yet to be finalised.  It will be important to continue working with 
East Devon and other service providers towards a Delivery Plan that helps to secure 
good development within both administrative areas.  Alongside this, clear funding 
arrangements will need to be agreed in maximising the early provision of essential 
infrastructure.  

   

Page 18



5.4 Away from the West End, joint infrastructure planning work should include further 
investigation of opportunities for a new transport interchange that serves the 
northern corridor into the city from Crediton.  This is something that the Exeter City 
IDP already identifies.   

  
6 RECOMMENDATION 

6.1 Executive is recommended to agree that the City Council’s response to 
East Devon District Council is based upon the following four principles.  This 
approach was supported by Planning Member Working Group on 8 January 2013: 

i) Support for the overall development strategy and the commitment to 
development growth east of Exeter, particularly the provisions for economic 
development; 

ii) Welcoming the commitment to large scale housing development in the West 
End but seeking additional ‘reserve’ provision north of Blackhorse on land that 
has previously been identified as deliverable; 

iii) The City Council’s commitment to ongoing joint working and cooperation 
between the authorities and other service providers to deliver comprehensively 
planned sustainable communities that help to fully realise the sub-region’s 
growth potential; 

iv) A commitment to work closely with East Devon and other service providers on 
respective infrastructure delivery plans; identifying and agreeing funding 
arrangements that seek to maximise the early provision of essential 
infrastructure. 

RICHARD SHORT 
ASSISTANT DIRECTOR CITY DEVELOPMENT 

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 (as amended)
Background papers used in compiling this report:   

None 

Page 19



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

; 
 E

A
S

T
 D

E
V

O
N

 W
E

S
T

 E
N

D
 P

R
O

P
O

S
A

L
S

 

Page 20



Final 

EXETER CITY COUNCIL 
 
 

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE – ECONOMY 
17 JANUARY 2013 

 
EXECUTIVE 

22 JANUARY 2013 
 
 

DRAFT CITY CENTRE STRATEGY FOR EXETER 2013-2022 
 
1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 

 
1.1 To update Members on preparation of a new City Centre Strategy to cover the 

period 2013/22. 
  
2. BACKGROUND  

 
2.1 
 
 
 
 
2.2 
 
 
 

The case for a new City Centre Strategy received the backing of the City 
Centre Management Partnership Board (CCMPB) in May 2012 and initial 
consideration has been given to key strategic themes and potential project 
strands during the course of the year. 
 
The current City Centre Strategy (covering the period 2007/12) has reached a 
conclusion and a framework is needed to maintain the momentum of City 
Centre change, renewal and investment for the coming 5-10 year period. The 
new City Centre Strategy needs to relate to the Exeter Vision and to map out 
timescales for key developments and activities. An outline timetable for 
development of this strategy is attached. 
 

2.3 
 
 

The draft Strategy is very much a discussion document which will inevitably 
change to reflect the realities of resource availability and the capacity to deliver 
proposed actions. In short the context for the Strategy is difficult: 

• The most significant squeeze on the public finances in decades,; 

• A decade of major economic progress for the City Centre – which, in 
spite of the major contribution to the economic welfare of the city, now 
provides the challenge of complacency with a widespread view that 
continued economic progress is a given; 

• A likely focus of City Council capital expenditure on the swimming pool 
element of Bus Station site redevelopment; 

• The need for a re-gearing in the relationship between business and 
public authorities on the funding of ‘city centre management’ initiatives. 
A Business Improvement District will be an essential pre-requisite for 
moving forward many of the project strands envisaged in the draft City 
Centre Strategy. 

 

 

2.4 
 
 
 
 
 

A draft City Centre Strategy is attached. It is envisaged that this will provide the 
basis for in-depth dialogue with a range of stakeholders and key partners. 
Development of the strategy document will be an iterative process as the views 
and comments of the key agencies, business community and the City Council 
are collated during the consultation phase. The Strategy will be overseen by a 
reconstituted City Centre Management Partnership comprising active 

 

Agenda Item 10

Page 21



Final 

 
 
 
 
 
 
3 
 

representation from the business community covering the relevant sectors and 
areas of the City Centre, from Princesshay and Guildhall centres, the City 
Council, Police and County Council. Once agreed each body will need to 
account for progress on those aspects of the Strategy for which they are 
responsible.  
 
STRATEGY CONTENT 
 

3.1 The City Centre Strategy has been drawn together with the following structure: 

• A brief introduction on the current City Centre offer, a summary of 
progress during the last five year period, an assessment of the city 
centre’s current competitive position (including a City Centre SWOT 
analysis), a summary of key development aims during the next 5-10 
years and an Action Plan. 

 

• Strategy purpose – which can be identified as four-fold: 

(1) To provide a clear timetable for the Strategy (to cover the ten 
year period – up to 2022, although the primary focus is initially 
on the first 5 years); 

(2) To present a positive case for City Centre inward investment 
(and re-investment by existing businesses); 

(3) To set out clear aims and project objectives for the CCMP and 
its partners, including the delivery of a City  
Centre Business Improvement District which is a critical element 
of providing the necessary resources for achieving desired 
progress during the coming 5 year period;  

(4) To clearly set out partners and lead agency responsibilities for 
the implementation and delivery of the Strategy Action Plan. 

 
 • Action Plan targets are summarised under the following key aims: 

(1) Securing and building on Exeter City Centre’s competitive 
advantage.  

(2) Giving a better first impression.  

(3) Delivering a vibrant centre which offers attractions for all. 

(4) Achieving an even safer environment.  

(5) Securing a vibrant, welcoming and safe evening economy. 
 

• A series of projects have been identified that will help deliver progress 
against the above. Action Plan projects, and indeed the Strategy as a 
whole will have to strike a balance between aspirations that are 
challenging yet realistic and priorities which are essential and the 
means has to be found to deliver them. 

  
4. OWNERSHIP & DELIVERY 

 
4.1 
 
 
 
 
 

For the City Centre Strategy to be successful it must have widespread 
ownership – and this will need to include a clear commitment to the aims and 
project delivery from not only City Council units, but also from partners to 
include Devon County Council, the Police, the business community and 
Chamber of Commerce. By definition, some project streams have the potential 
to be challenging to the City Council. 

Page 22



Final 

 
 
4.2. 
 
 
 
 
4.3 
 
 
 

 
 
Draft projects carry a clear indication of lead agency/organisation/business, 
lead individual, timescale and likely funding streams. Project details at this 
stage remain very much work in progress. 
 
The projects list contains a number of aspirations that can be identified as ‘kite 
flying’ – it’s hoped that this will help secure a period of robust debate and 
dialogue amongst partners prior to finalisation of the City Centre Strategy in 
Spring 2013. 

5. TIMESCALE & CONSULTATION 
 

5.1 
 
 

The objective will be to secure a published City Centre Strategy by June 2013 
although it will be important that the finished document has had sufficient 
consultation and support before finally being signed off.  
. 

6. RECOMMENDED that 
 

6.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Scrutiny Committee – Economy 
 

(i) Members note progress on City Centre Strategy development to 
date and comment on proposed themes and proposed project 
work streams. 

(ii) Members support development of the City Centre Strategy 
development on the timetable proposed. 

 

6.2 Executive approve the draft City Centre Strategy as the basis for public 
engagement and consultation with key stakeholders. 

 
 

 

RICHARD BALL 
ASSISTANT DIRECTOR ECONOMY 
 
 
 
 
Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1972 (as amended) 
Background papers used in compiling this report:- 

None 

 

Page 23



Page 24

This page is intentionally left blank



Draft 04/01//2013 

Competitive, Attractive, Dynamic – Delivering A Further 
Decade Of Change, Renewal and Investment 
A City Centre Strategy for Exeter, 2013-2022 

1:  Introduction

1.1 With a retail catchment of over a million people, Exeter is a key, and rapidly 
expanding, regional centre. The economic, social and cultural role played by the city 
cannot be underestimated and the rapid expansion of the City Centre – and the city 
as a whole – over the last decade has the potential to continue during the next 
decade and beyond. The economic track record of the City as a whole is impressive: 

• Exeter is in the top 2% in the UK for its rate of growth in job creation. Between 
2000 – 2009, the wider Exeter and the Heart of Devon area created an 
additional 15,000 jobs, representing a 12% increase and Exeter itself increased 
by 24%; 

• Exeter is an employment hub. In terms of job density where the number of jobs 
in an area is divided by the number of working age residents, Exeter 
outperforms most UK locations for job density and is positioned 10th overall in 
the UK; 

• Between 2008 and 2012, Exeter was in the top 10 nationally for job creation; all 
achieved whilst 76% of all locations throughout the UK saw actual job losses; 

• The UK Competitiveness Index confirmed that Exeter has seen the greatest 
improvement against all other UK locations. With further significant 
developments planned, the Exeter economy is in a strong market position to 
grow further. 

1.2 Taken alongside the unique combination of natural and historical resources, close 
proximity to beautiful countryside and strategic transportation links, the strength of the 
Exeter economy provides a sound base for a further decade of city centre change, 
renewal and investment. It is critical to recognise, however, that whilst the strength of 
the City Centre economy – and indeed the city economy as a whole – is a South West 
success story, the challenge of tackling national misconceptions about Exeter is a 
very real one.  

1.3 The position of Exeter in the UK retail hierarchy is already significant (currently ranked 
at 38 within the top 50 UK centres). Since 2007 Exeter has made sound progress in 
securing a strong position within the national retail rankings and against a backdrop of 
recent changes to the methodology for calculating the retail rankings it is anticipated 
that Exeter will move on to underline its regional position of strength and cement its 
position within the premier league of UK cities. 

1.4  CACI uses a number of measures to rank UK centres: 
a. Physical distance to (or time taken to reach) the centre; 

Page 25



Draft 04/01//2013 

b. The ‘Attractiveness’ of the centre’s facilities’ – scored by looking at 
turnover from multiples and department stores in each centre, by 
counting independent comparison goods retailers in each centre and the 
count of ‘footfall generators’ (such as banks and restaurants) in each 
centre; 

c. Level of competition; 
d. Population, ‘Demand’ and Spend. 

 The CACI retail rankings are increasingly important, with a growing trend towards 
major retailers focusing their investments in a reducing number of large centres. It’s 
essential that Exeter is in a strong position to continue to attract such investment and 
securing the highest possible retail ranking will underpin work to secure further retail 
investment. 

 There is a real opportunity for Exeter to significantly improve its retail ranking. A top 
35 position within the retail hierarchy is the target for Exeter during the next decade, 
post completion of the mixed use redevelopment of the Exeter Bus and Coach Station 
– with the focus being to drive the city clearly in to the top 30. 

1.5 Although the City Centre has made significant progress in delivering major 
improvements to its retail offer over the last decade, progress on the leisure and 
cultural offer has been less dynamic. Redevelopment of the Bus Station site offers an 
opportunity to start to re-address this imbalance, but next steps of change through 
West Quarter development will be critical in maintaining the process of achieving the 
broadest possible City Centre offer. Proposed development of the Bus Station site 
provides a real opportunity to further improve the attraction of people not just to visit 
the content of the new development but to make the City Centre even more of a 
destination for a wider cross section of the population at different times. The benefits 
are intended to be widespread from an increase in footfall and longer time spent 
staying and enjoying what the City Centre as a whole has to offer.  

1.6 The City Centre acts as a shop window for the city – showcasing the economic 
vibrancy of the city as a whole and the strength of the local community that underpins 
that vibrancy. The first and ongoing impressions and experiences that City Centre 
visitors get provide key messages on whether the city welcomes its visitors and is a 
good place to stay, on whether it’s safe, on whether it’s vibrant and fun, on whether 
it’s unique and different (as opposed to identikit and uninteresting) and on whether it’s 
a good place in which to do business and invest. 

1.7 The growth in the number of City Centre residents has been a key feature of City 
Centre development during the last decade – underpinning increased City Centre 
vibrancy and safety. 

1.8 It is vital that the City Centre is seen as ever more welcoming, vibrant, safe and clean 
and that, through building links with local community organisations, charities, schools 
and community groups, it also links to the local community and strengthens 
community loyalty to the City Centre.  

Page 26



Draft 04/01//2013 

1.9     This strategy sets out a vision for the next decade of City Centre change, renewal and     
 investment and, together with the associated action plan, sets out a series of priorities 
 that will be of benefit to Exeter City Centre and all its users. The strategy sits within 
 the context of ‘A City Centre Vision For A Green Capital’ published in April 2011. The 
 City Centre Vision set out: 

• a number of development framework principles, designed to emphasise and 
build on those principles that are, or could be, memorable and great about 
Exeter; 

• “Four Big Moves” or development projects that represent one way of delivering 
change, within the context of the agreed development framework principles, 
and driving City Centre development and growth forward. 

1.10 This Strategy is owned by the City Centre Partnership – comprising Exeter City 
Council, Devon County Council, City Centre businesses, Devon and Cornwall Police 
and key transport providers. 

1.11    Importantly, the City Centre Vision recognises the importance of delivering growth and 
investment whilst at the same time ensuring the City Centre doesn’t lose its 
fundamental character and appeal. Together with an associated action plan, this City 
Centre Strategy maps out timescales and specific projects that will move the City 
Centre towards delivery of key Vision principles and ‘big moves’. The Strategy also 
sits alongside the Exeter Place Marketing Strategy, the 2012–2016 Exeter Visitor 
Strategy and the forthcoming Exeter Cultural Strategy 2013-18. 

1.12   This strategy document begins with a brief contextual analysis for Exeter City Centre 
 as it is today, summarises key areas of progress against the 2007 – 2012 City Centre 
 Strategy and then sets out both key strategic aims for the period 2013 – 2018 and a 
 clear set of projects within an associated Action Plan. A set of core indicators are set 
 out within the Action Plan which will be used to monitor progress against the Action 
 Plan, with annual progress reports to be considered by the City Centre Management 
 Partnership. 

2:  Previous Strategy

2.1 The previous Exeter City Centre Strategy covered the period 2007 – 2012 and set out 
a vision for a City Centre that: 

• built on the things that made it distinctive and gave it competitive edge; 

• delivered a positive first impression, particularly in the quality, sustainability and 
accessibility of its built environment; 

• offered facilities and attractions that would enhance the vibrancy, diversity, 
status and prosperity of the city; 

• provided, as a matter of course, a safe environment for all City Centre users. 

Page 27



Draft 04/01//2013 

2.2  Even though the Strategy spanned the period of the most challenging economic 
 downturn in living memory, the period has been one of significant progress for the City 
 Centre: 

Development 

• Princesshay development completed – and a successful launch period 
followed-up with continuing healthy trading; 

‘Retail’ Investment 

• the opening of John Lewis; 

• the opening of a range of other key retailers including Hollister, Republic, 
Urban Outfitters and Jack & Jones; 

Travel/Access 

• the refurbishment of King William Street Car Park – and its re-opening as John 
Lewis Car Park; 

• an increase in patronage on both Stagecoach Park & Ride services and the 
First Great Western Tarka & Avocet lines (Exmouth – Exeter passenger 
numbers (Avocet Line) grew by 32.4% between 2006/07 and 2011/12 and 
Barnstaple – Exeter passenger numbers (Tarka Line) grew by 73.2% between 
2006/07 and 2011/12; 

Improvements for Pedestrians 

• the delivery of a bigger pedestrianised zone at the heart of the City Centre – 
creating a much more pedestrian-friendly shopper and visitor environment; 

• pedestrian improvements in Paris Street – delivering better connectivity 
between High Street and Sidwell Street & the Bus Station; 

• pedestrian improvements and delivering a significantly improved environment 
in Sidwell Street; 

• the delivery of a more pedestrian-friendly Cathedral Yard and Close; 

• the delivery of significant improvements in High Street – making the area a 
much more attractive shopping environment;

Economic Performance 

• retail vacancy rates remaining consistently better than the national position, 
with current rates running at approximately half the national average; 

Visitor Attractions/Improvements 

• significant progress on the delivery of City Centre café culture – with an 
increase in the number of City Centre cafes and restaurants and a marked 
increase in the volume of outside seating in areas across the City Centre; 

• the re-opening of the Royal Albert Memorial Museum (RAMM), after an 
extensive – and widely lauded refurbishment (and the awarding of the Museum 
of the Year 2012 to RAMM); 

• the opening of two new City Centre hotels – Southernhay House and The 
Magdalen Chapter – and the opening of a new Premier Inn at St David’s 
Station; 

• the opening of Exeter Visitor and Tickets within the Princesshay development 
and the opening of a new visitor centre for the city’s Underground Passages. 

Page 28



Draft 04/01//2013 

3:  Current Position

3.1 There is much to celebrate about Exeter City Centre – at the heart of an attractive, 
connected, fast-developing city. Over the last decade, the development of the City 
Centre has mirrored the development of the city – moving from a place perhaps seen 
as slightly provincial towards a leading regional centre, with a City Centre that is 
increasingly the investment location of choice for key retailers west of Bristol. 

3.2 There is a fantastic level of support within the city community for the growth and 
increasing vibrancy of the City Centre – essential as the City Centre continues to 
negotiate a period of radical change, renewal and investment. In embarking on further 
change, renewal and investment it is important that we build upon the existing 
strengths of the City Centre as set out in the bullet points below under the broad aims 
of the new strategy: 

Aim 1 – securing and building on Exeter City Centre’s competitive advantage – 
as it  

• delivers a good – and constantly improving – mix of national brand names and 
an excellent range of unique and independent retailers; 

• has an extensive catchment area; 

• is compact and relatively easy to access, with rail services, bus provision and 
the Park and Ride facilities, arguably the best of any major centre in the South 
west peninsula; 

Aim 2 – giving a better first impression – the City Centre has 

• a built environment that is generally good and is getting better, with the delivery 
of an on-going programme of high-quality public space improvement work; 

• valuable green ‘lungs’ at the heart of the City Centre (Cathedral Green, 
Southernhay, Northernhay and Rougemont Parks and a range of ‘hidden’ 
green pocket spaces across the City Centre); 

Aim 3 – delivering a vibrant centre which offers attractions for all – the city

• plays host to a unique and vibrant cultural calendar, has experienced strong 
growth in its food and restaurant sector and, through the recently re-opened 
award winning Royal Albert Memorial Museum, offers historical and 
contemporary collections of national significance; 

• is undergoing a radical period of redevelopment and change – building on the 
award winning Princesshay scheme; 

• has a rich historic fabric, with the Cathedral and its Close, the wider City Centre 
and the Quayside providing a unique context for current and future 
regeneration work; 

• lies in close proximity to other significant tourist attractions and some of the 
most stunning coastal and country locations anywhere in the country; 

Aim 4 – achieving an even safer environment, 

• the city can lay claim to ‘safe city’ status, with low crime rates and a focus on 
partnership working to drive crime rates down still further; 

Page 29



Draft 04/01//2013 

Aim 5 – securing a vibrant, welcoming and safe evening economy

• Exeter has an evening economy café culture that has grown exponentially over 
the last decade and continues to go from strength to strength. 

3.3 Although there are many City Centre strengths and opportunities, there are 
weaknesses and threats too. A SWOT analysis of Exeter City Centre is set out in 
Appendix A. Making progress with the ‘big moves’ set out within the Vision and 
delivery of the Action Plan aims and projects will make a major contribution towards 
addressing the highlighted weaknesses and threats. It is essential that the City Centre 
is seen not only as a key regional shopping destination, but also that it significantly 
strengthens its role as a leisure and cultural location of choice. 

3.4 Despite the many positives, the physical environment in which Exeter City Centre 
operates is an increasingly competitive one. It is essential therefore, that the City 
Centre adapts, expands and develops to meet the challenges presented both 
nationally and regionally. This City Centre Strategy begins to map out the necessary 
next steps in realising the aspirations articulated within the ‘City Centre Vision For A 
Green Capital’. 

3.5 Whilst Exeter City Centre has continued to markedly improve and cement its regional 
competitive position during the last decade, the City Centre is susceptible to many of 
the same risks as other towns and cities across the UK. The threats from the 
exponential growth of online shopping, from ever-increasing customer expectations 
around shopping as a leisure activity, from mobile technologies and from recessionary 
pressures are of major significance. Successful centres of the future must act as more 
than simple retail and visitor hubs – being innovative and adapting their offer within a 
constantly changing marketplace.  

3.6 The recent Portas Review contains a range of extremely stark statistics – as 
challenging for Exeter as for other UK town and city centres. Although internet sales 
currently account for less than 10% of all retail sales some estimates suggest that e-
commerce accounted for nearly half of all retail sales growth in the UK between 2003 
and 2012, as internet access has become more widespread. Sales over mobile 
devices (dubbed ‘m-commerce’) have grown at an extraordinary rate – more than 
500% in the last two years. By 2015 we’ll see more than £40 billion a year being spent 
over the internet and through mobile devices, compared with virtually nil in 1997. 
During the last decade the amount of out-of-town retail floor-space has risen by 30%, 
whilst the amount of in-town floor-space has fallen by 14%. 

3.7 E-commerce and m-commerce clearly pose a threat, but there are opportunities too 
and an increasing recognition that what matters to retailers is achieving the right blend 
of on-line and ‘bricks and mortar’ retailing. It is worth noting that: 

• Both Amazon and E-Bay – who have been key leaders in the march of on-line 
retailing are seeking a presence on the UK High Street; 

• Increasingly a number of retailers recognise that a website presence is a key 
driver for shop sales; 

Page 30



Draft 04/01//2013 

• 88% of consumers purchase ‘offline’ – either as a ‘True Offliner’ (only views 
products in-store and only buys in-store) (31%) or as a ‘RoPo’ (57%) (informs 
purchases online, but buys offline); 

• The challenges presented by e-commerce and m-commerce are driving more 
empowered consumers – empowerment that can be used to the advantage of 
town and city centres in relation to driving changes to opening hours, the retail 
experience and retail mix. 

3.8 The challenges of e-commerce and m-commerce are in their own right significant, but 
when layered with the challenges that remain to the UK economy, the threats and 
challenges to the City Centre economy, and the retail economy specifically, remain 
significant. The most positive of forecasts for the UK economy show economic growth 
in 2013 at not much more than 1% and, whilst there is more positive news on retail 
inflation and consumer spending, the environment for retailers is likely to remain 
challenging for the foreseeable future. The ‘John Lewis effect’ is, in part, protecting 
the Exeter City Centre economy from the worst excesses of the UK recessionary 
pressures, but Exeter cannot remain immune from the challenges facing the UK 
economy as a whole. 

3.9 Exeter City Centre, as with other UK town and city centres, has immeasurable social 
as well as economic value. With the City Centre acting as a shop window for the city 
as a whole, some of the underlying social challenges that the wider community faces 
present themselves in the City Centre and a strong City Centre economy is only 
possible based on a strong community. The challenge of binge drinking and the 
impact that has on at least perceptions of safety in the evening is an increasing issue 
for the community as a whole. A key area for action during the lifespan of the Strategy 
will be Aim 5 (securing a vibrant, welcoming and safe evening economy), with 
particular progress needed on this front to ensure the City Centre is the shop window 
needed for the city as a whole. 

3.10 Virtually every member of the city community depends on the City Centre for meeting 
friends and colleagues, for shopping, for entertainment & cultural activity and for the 
role the centre fulfils as both a transport hub and a hub for the public services. 
Individuals depend on the City Centre for jobs. Businesses depend on the City Centre 
for survival, profits and growth. 

3.11 The City Centre offers an abundance of opportunities for growth, local employment, 
wealth and social interactions that are invaluable to the city. Whilst ‘retailing’ is the 
economic engine for the City Centre, the continued success and vibrancy of the City 
Centre will be utterly dependent on the continued loyalty of the city community and 
that loyalty will only remain if the City Centre clearly delivers as an accessible and 
sustainable ‘service centre’ for the community as a whole. 

3.12 There is no room for complacency about the City Centre, its past success and its 
value. With convenience and ‘leisure’ shopping likely to become ever-more critical 
drivers of consumer behaviour, there must be a hard-headed approach to the 
importance of constant change to remain ‘ahead of the game’.  

Page 31



Draft 04/01//2013 

3.13 It is clear that if the positive momentum behind City Centre change, renewal and 
investment is to be maintained, the City Centre Strategy and Action Plan projects 
must undertake the following in order to deliver the aims as set out below: 

1 – Securing and building on Exeter City Centre’s competitive advantage

• Maintain a momentum of change, renewal and investment that builds on the 
Princesshay and John Lewis developments and ensures the City Centre 
continues to strengthen its position in the regional and national retail hierarchy. 

• Ensure there is a focus on strengthening the whole of the City Centre linear 
‘urban spine’ (from Exe Bridges to the top of Sidwell Street) – reinforcing the 
city’s unique layout and ensuring that all City Centre quarters are strengthened 
through on-going City Centre investment. 

• Ensure Exeter is the investment location of choice for retailers looking to move 
west of Bristol. 

• Ensure there is an environment of encouragement and support for City Centre 
businesses wishing to invest and strengthen their city presence. 

• As part of a wider transport and environmental strategy, reduce peak-hour 
congestion and address the resulting impact on air quality and the pedestrian 
environment. 

• As part of the transport and environmental strategy, constantly review access 
to the City Centre, working to ensure the right balance between private cars 
and public transport and looking at both the supply of City Centre parking and 
pricing mechanisms – ensuring that the transportation mix encourages visitors 
and maximises City Centre dwell time. 

• Strengthen partnership working, recognising that the most dynamic change 
and renewal can only be delivered with effective joint working. 

2 – Giving a better first impression

• Deliver the best possible City Centre ‘gateway’ experiences (for example at St 
David’s Station & Central Station, at Exeter Bus Station and at Exe Bridges). 

• Improve the quality, maintenance and management of public space so that the 
City Centre becomes an even friendlier and an even more attractive and 
accessible place, with the right balance between city vibrancy and ‘quiet 
spaces’. 

• Ensure the varied parts of the City Centre feel truly connected – with the City 
centre an easy and pleasurable place for visitors to navigate and with every 
encouragement for visitors to discover every unique element of the` City 
Centre. 

3 – Delivering a vibrant centre which offers attractions for all

• Keep retail at the heart of the city. 

• Do more to ensure that external perceptions recognise the true retail and 
cultural individuality and character of Exeter City Centre. 

• Support the development of creative events and initiatives in the City Centre. 

Page 32



Draft 04/01//2013 

• Focus on creating opportunities and jobs – ensuring that, through investment in 
skills and training, local people (particularly young people and those wishing to 
return to work) have the opportunities to share in City centre success. 

• Ensure that the City Centre continues to grow in strength as a ‘hub’ at the 
centre of the Heart of Devon tourism offer.

• Deliver ‘vibrancy for all’ – ensuring that the retail and entertainment offer is 
attractive to all sections of the population. 

4 – Achieving an even safer environment

• Do more to make people feel safe in the City Centre, 24 hours a day. 

• Deliver specific projects to tackle head-on the minority of individuals who 
 engage in criminal activity, anti-social behaviour and disorder, both during the 
 day and at night. 

5 – Securing a vibrant, welcoming and safe evening economy

• ‘Connect’ the day-time and evening economy – holding more and more people 
in the City Centre post 6pm. 

3.14 It is also clear that the squeeze on public finances will remain for the period of the 
Strategy and beyond and that without the delivery of a Business Improvement District 
and the business community fully stepping up to the plate there will be significant 
difficulties in the maintaining the positive momentum achieved in the City Centre over 
the last decade. 

4: Aiming To Turn Vision Into Reality

4.1 Many Exeter people – and the Exeter business community – are passionate about 
what they see as ‘their City Centre’, and ‘their High Street’. They will often disagree on 
what’s wrong and what’s right with the City Centre, but the passion they hold is a 
power to harness and generate ideas and innovative proposals for moving the City 
Centre forward. This Strategy and associated Action Plan will only be marked as a 
success if it inspires more businesses in the City Centre and those responsible for its 
development and maintenance as a whole to embrace change and renewal and to 
work ever more closely together on the delivery of radical management and 
innovative project delivery. 

4.2 Green Vision aims are aspirational, but key to moving the City Centre forward. Of 
particular importance are the four ‘big moves’ set out within the Vision. As the 
momentum of City Centre change and renewal is maintained, it is vital that the Vision 
is kept in sight as change is delivered. 

4.3 The four “Big Moves” – ‘Space For Growth’, ‘Balancing The Effects Of Growth’, ‘A 
New Place On The River’ and ‘A Sense Of Arrival’ – provide a framework for the 
Action Plan. The delivery of Action Plan objectives and projects will make a significant 

Page 33



Draft 04/01//2013 

contribution to realisation of the Vision. Further detail on each of the “Big Moves” is 
set out below. 

4.4 Space for Growth.  The most obvious location to extend and develop the City Centre 
is outside the city walls. 
4.4.1 The Development to the east of the city wall adjacent to Princesshay provides 

a significant opportunity for the next phase of City Centre change, renewal and 
investment (the East Quarter). 

4.4.2 The Bus and Coach Station is one of the key arrival points into the city and 
redevelopment of the East Quarter will need to incorporate a re-developed bus 
station offering a much improved arrival experience. Not only will the 
redevelopment of the ‘Bus Station’ site offer a state-of-the-art new transport 
interchange, the site offers the city the opportunity to deliver a significantly 
enhanced City centre leisure offer and the best possible gateway in to the City 
Centre. 

4.4.3 There are a number of different potential forms new East Quarter development 
could take. Work on moving forward with East Quarter development has 
already commenced with enhancement of the Paris Street/Sidwell Street 
junction. There is potential for further improvement of public space at the Paris 
Street/Sidwell Street junction and for significant further enhancement of Sidwell 
Street. 

4.4.4 Beyond Cheeke Street there would be a transition in character between the 
new city quarter and ‘St Sidwell’s’ – a mixed use quarter with a reduced scale, 
local and specialist shopping facilities, food and drink outlets and student 
accommodation. 

4.5 ‘Balancing the Effects of Growth’.  Parts of the existing City Centre are not working 
 as well as they could. 

4.5.1 In particular, blocks to the west of South and North Streets and the Harlequins 
Shopping Centre off Paul Street are prime city centre locations that have the 
potential for significant improvement 

4.5.2 Whilst commercially successful, the Guildhall Shopping Centre is a very large 
‘inward looking’ development which has blank facades facing out on to two 
strategically important streets (North Street and Paul Street) and blocks 
attractive views towards the City Centre.  

4.5.3 Investment in the Guildhall area is a critical second “Big Move”. Guildhall 
development is critical in balancing changes proposed in the East Quarter. 

4.6 ‘A New Place on the River’ & ‘A Sense of Arrival’. The third and fourth ‘Big Moves’ 
relate to the interface between the City Centre and the Rive/Exe Bridges (‘A New 
Place on the River’) and delivering the best possible arrival points for the City Centre 
(‘A Sense of Arrival’). The importance of delivering the best possible first impressions 
for the City Centre is identified as a key Strategy aim. 

Page 34



Draft 04/01//2013 

4.7 ‘A New Place on the River’.  This is the most aspirational of the “Big Moves”. There 
 is a recognition that the City Centre largely turns its back on the riverside, with major 
 roads separating the City Centre from the historic Quayside.  ‘A new place on the 
 river’ would provide an additional destination at the junction of the spine that runs  
 through the City Centre and the River Exe.  

4.8 ‘A Sense of Arrival.  A number of key gateways in to the City Centre currently fall 
 short of providing the best possible first impressions of the City Centre. 

4.8.1 At present Western Way creates a physical barrier between the City Centre 
and neighbourhoods in the south-east. Equally, the arrival experience from 
central rail and bus stations is poor, with surface car parking and a narrow 
alleyway providing the initial route to the City Centre from St David’s Station 
and a poor environment to the front of Central Station. The bus station is 
unattractive and surrounded by post-war development in need of 
redevelopment. 

4.8.2 Opportunities exist for the creation of new public space and development to the 
front of St David’s Station. At Central Station there are plans for the creation of 
a new pedestrian-friendly forecourt. Delivery of an excellent Bus Station will be 
addressed within the context of East Quarter development. 

4.9 In addition to the four “Big Moves”, there are a opportunities for environmental 
enhancements in a number of ‘pockets’ across the City Centre – improvements that 
would better cement together disparate elements of the City Centre and provide 
momentum in delivering the more substantial remodelling of the Centre. Pocket areas 
where change, to underpin bigger strategic change, is needed include: 

• Northernhay Place; 

• Library ‘squares’ and interconnecting ‘concrete canyons’ of the Cultural, or 
Castle, Quarter; 

• Clock Tower; 

• West Street. 

4.10 Section 5 of this Strategy document comprises an Action Plan. The Action Plan will be  
 reviewed – and re-issued – on a rolling two year basis throughout the lifespan of the 
 Strategy. 

4.11 Action Plan projects are set out within five broad aims: 

1 – Securing and building on Exeter City Centre’s competitive advantage; 
2 – Giving a better first impression; 
3 – Delivering a vibrant centre which offers attractions for all; 
4 – Achieving an even safer environment; 
5 – Securing a vibrant, welcoming and safe evening economy. 

4.12 Delivery of a BID itself will also represent a key work strand during the first part of the 
 Strategy. In addition to unlocking essential funding to enhance the marketing, 

Page 35



Draft 04/01//2013 

 vibrancy, safety, maintenance and cleanliness of the City Centre, a City Centre 
 Business Improvement Project will also set out to deliver: 

• the most effective possible route for ensuring that the voice of business is 
heard loud and clear during a further decade of radical change; 

• a mechanism for harnessing the enthusiasm, vision and ideas of the widest 
possible cross-section of the City Centre community; 

• a ‘shared agenda’ on delivering the City Centre change agenda; 

• the best possible environment for nurturing and harnessing the growth potential 
of independent businesses. 

4.13 The Strategy is published at the time of the most significant squeeze on the public 
 finances in decades. Neither core Strategy objectives or projects will be deliverable 
 without a clear re-alignment of expenditure on City Centre enhancements, promotion 
 & marketing, maintenance and competitive positioning between local authorities and 
 the business community. Progress on delivering a Business Improvement District will 
 be an essential step in this realignment. 

4.14 Progress on Strategy impact will be measured through a basket of PI measures which 
 will include: 

• Retail vacancy rates – monitoring report every other month; 

• Car Park ticket sales (City Council) – monitoring monthly, quarterly and 
annually; 

• Park & Ride usage; 

• Retail takings benchmark analysis – monitoring quarterly; 

• Visitor figures for Exeter Cathedral, RAMM, and other attractions – monitoring 
monthly/quarterly; 

• Footfall monitoring, Princesshay & Guildhall Shopping Centre. 

Page 36



D
ra

ft
 0

4
/0

1
//

2
0
1
3
 

S
e

c
ti

o
n

 5
 –

 A
c

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

A
im

 1
 –

 S
e
c
u

ri
n

g
 &

 B
u

il
d

in
g

 E
x
e
te

r 
C

it
y
 C

e
n

tr
e
’s

 C
o

m
p

e
ti

ti
v
e
 A

d
v
a
n

ta
g

e
 

P
ro

je
c
t 

Y
e
a
r 

L
e
a
d

 
P

a
rt

n
e
rs

 
C

o
s
t 

E
s
ti

m
a
te

 
O

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

d
is

tr
ic

t 
(B

ID
) 

A
u
tu

m
n
 

2
0
1
3
 t

a
rg

e
t 

fo
r 

B
ID

 
b
a
llo

t 

C
h
a
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

C
o
m

m
e
rc

e
 

C
it
y
 C

e
n
tr

e
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 

E
x
e
te

r 
C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

D
e
v
o
n
 C

o
u
n
ty

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

B
ID

 
c
a
m

p
a
ig

n
 -

 
£
1
5
k
 

T
o
 s

tr
e
n
g

th
e
n
 t

h
e
 C

it
y
 C

e
n
tr

e
’s

 c
o
m

p
e
ti
ti
v
e
 

p
o
s
it
io

n
, 

im
p
ro

v
e
 m

a
rk

e
ti
n
g
 a

n
d
 p

ro
m

o
ti
o
n
a
l 

a
c
ti
v
it
y
, 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 d

a
y
 v

is
it
o
r 

n
u
m

b
e
rs

, 
in

c
re

a
s
e
 

a
w

a
re

n
e
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 E

x
e
te

r 
‘o

ff
e
r’
 a

n
d
 e

n
h
a
n
c
e
 

C
it
y
 C

e
n
tr

e
 s

a
fe

ty
, 
s
e
c
u
ri
ty

 a
n
d
 c

le
a
n
s
in

g
 &

 
m

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
. 

 
R

e
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 B

u
s
 S

ta
ti
o
n
 

2
0
1
4
 s

ta
rt

 
d
a
te

 –
 

P
h
a
s
e
 1

 

E
x
e
te

r 
C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

L
a
n
d
 S

e
c
u
ri
ti
e
s
 

S
ta

g
e
c
o
a
c
h
 

 
T

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

a
 s

te
p
-c

h
a
n
g

e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 C

it
y
 c

e
n
tr

e
 

le
is

u
re

 a
n
d
 r

e
ta

il 
o
ff

e
r 

a
n
d
 d

e
liv

e
r 

a
 s

a
te

-o
f-

th
e
 

a
rt

 b
u
s
 s

ta
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 m

o
d
e
rn

 s
w

im
m

in
g

 p
o
o
l 

c
o
m

p
le

x
 

W
e
s
t 
Q

u
a
rt

e
r 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 

2
0
1
5
 

F
o
re

 S
tr

e
e
t 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

C
o
lle

c
ti
v
e
 

E
x
e
te

r 
C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

D
e
v
o
n
 C

o
u
n
ty

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

 
T

o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 a
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
 o

f 
m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 t
o
 

e
n
h
a
n
c
e
 F

o
re

 s
tr

e
e
t 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 W

e
s
t 
Q

u
a
rt

e
r 

–
 

le
a
d
in

g
, 

in
 t

u
rn

, 
to

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 p

e
rc

e
p
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
w

h
a
t 

th
e
 W

e
s
t 
Q

u
a
rt

e
r 

h
a
s
 t

o
 o

ff
e
r 

a
n
d
, 
in

 d
u
e
 

c
o
u
rs

e
, 
to

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 f

o
o
tf

a
ll 

a
n
d
 t
ra

d
in

g
 

le
v
e

ls
 

C
u
s
to

m
e
r-

c
o
n
v
e
n
ie

n
t 
tr

a
d
in

g
 h

o
u
rs

 
A

n
n
u
a
l 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 

R
e
p
o
rt

 

C
it
y
 C

e
n
tr

e
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 

S
ta

g
e
c
o
a
c
h
 

E
x
e
te

r 
&

 H
e
a
rt

 o
f 

D
e
v
o
n
 

H
o
te

lie
rs

 &
 R

e
s
ta

u
ra

n
ts

 
A

s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
 

E
x
e
te

r 
C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

M
in

im
a
l 

T
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 t
h
e
 l
in

k
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 t

h
e
 d

a
y
-t

im
e
 a

n
d
 

e
v
e
n
in

g
 e

c
o
n
o
m

ie
s
 a

n
d
 t
o
 b

ro
a
d
e
n
 t

h
e
 

c
h
a
ra

c
te

r 
o
f 
th

e
 l
a
tt

e
r 

b
y
 s

tr
e
n
g
th

e
n
in

g
 t
h
e
 

c
a
fé

 c
u
lt
u
re

 a
n
d
 e

x
te

n
d
in

g
 o

p
e
n
in

g
 h

o
u
rs

. 
T

o
 

d
e
liv

e
r 

a
n
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 a

m
b
ie

n
c
e
 a

n
d
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 

in
c
id

e
n
c
e
 o

f 
a
lc

o
h
o
l-
re

la
te

d
 a

n
ti
-s

o
c
ia

l 
b
e
h
a
v
io

u
r.

 
S

tr
e
e
t 
C

o
m

m
it
te

e
s
 

A
n
n
u
a
l 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 

R
e
p
o
rt

 

C
it
y
 C

e
n
tr

e
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 

D
e
v
o
n
 C

o
u
n
ty

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

D
e
v
o
n
 &

 C
o
rn

w
a
ll 

P
o
lic

e
 

M
in

im
a
l 

T
o
 s

tr
e
n
g

th
e
n
 e

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

w
it
h
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 i
n
 

‘s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

’ 
re

ta
ili

n
g

 a
re

a
s
 –

 j
o
in

tl
y
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

in
g

 
p
ro

m
o
ti
o
n
a
l 
s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
, 

d
e
liv

e
ri
n
g

 l
o
c
a
l 

’o
w

n
e
rs

h
ip

’ 
o
f 
th

e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 

id
e
n
ti
fy

in
g
 a

 r
a
n
g

e
 o

f 
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
. 

R
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
S

id
w

e
ll 

S
tr

e
e
t 
M

a
rk

e
t 

O
p
ti
o
n
s
 

R
e
p
o
rt

 –
 

J
u
ly

 2
0
1
3
 

E
x
e
te

r 
C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

S
id

w
e
ll 

S
tr

e
e
t 

M
a
rk

e
t 

T
ra

d
e
rs

 

 
Id

e
n
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

g
ro

w
th

 a
n
d
 

e
n
h
a
n
c
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

S
id

w
e
ll 

S
tr

e
e
t 
M

a
rk

e
t 

w
it
h
in

 
th

e
 c

o
n
te

x
t 

o
f 

S
id

w
e
ll 

S
tr

e
e
t/

B
u
s
 S

ta
ti
o
n
 

re
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

Page 37



D
ra

ft
 0

4
/0

1
//

2
0
1
3
 

P
ro

je
c
t 

Y
e
a
r 

L
e
a
d

 
P

a
rt

n
e
rs

 
C

o
s
t 

E
s
ti

m
a
te

 
O

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

V
is

it
o
r 

C
o
a
c
h
 P

a
rk

in
g

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 

R
e
p
o
rt

 –
 

J
u
ly

 2
0
1
3
 

E
x
e
te

r 
C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

H
e
a
rt

 o
f 

D
e
v
o
n
 T

o
u
ri
s
m

 
P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 

 
T

o
 e

n
h
a
n
c
e
 t
h
e
 C

it
y
 C

e
n
tr

e
 v

is
it
o
r 

e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 

R
e
ta

ile
r 

in
w

a
rd

 i
n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
ta

rg
e
ti
n
g

 
R

e
v
ie

w
a
b
le

 
ta

rg
e
ts

 l
is

t 
F

ir
s
t 

lis
t 

2
0
1
3
 

E
x
e
te

r 
C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

C
h
a
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

C
o
m

m
e
rc

e
 

C
it
y
 C

e
n
tr

e
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 

C
it
y
 C

e
n
tr

e
 l
a
n
d
lo

rd
s
 

£
8
,0

0
0
 

T
o
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

s
tr

e
n
g
th

e
n
 E

x
e
te

r’
s
 c

o
m

p
e
ti
ti
v
e
 

p
o
s
it
io

n
 b

y
 s

tr
e
n
g
th

e
n
in

g
 t

h
e
 r

e
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
re

ta
il 

n
a
m

e
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 c

it
y
 

P
a
rk

 &
 R

id
e
 e

x
p
a
n
s
io

n
 

 
D

e
v
o
n
 C

o
u
n
ty

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

 
T

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

e
a
s
ie

r 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 C

it
y
 C

e
n
tr

e
, 

im
p
ro

v
in

g
 t
ra

v
e
l 
o
p
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

v
is

it
o
rs

, 
s
h
o
p
p
e
rs

 
a
n
d
 c

it
y
 w

o
rk

e
rs

. 
Y

e
a
r-

ro
u
n
d
 M

a
rk

e
ts

 
 

E
x
e
te

r 
C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

N
il 

c
o
s
t 

T
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

in
c
re

a
s
e
d
 C

it
y
 C

e
n
tr

e
 v

ib
ra

n
c
y
 w

it
h
 

a
 y

e
a
r-

ro
u
n
d
 s

e
ri
e
s
 o

f 
s
p
e
c
ia

lis
t 

m
a
rk

e
ts

 –
 

b
u
ild

in
g

 o
n
 t
h
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
th

e
 2

0
1
2
 C

a
th

e
d
ra

l 
C

h
ri
s
tm

a
s
 M

a
rk

e
t 

Im
p
ro

v
e
d
 p

re
s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
v
a
c
a
n
t 

re
ta

il 
u
n
it
s
 

O
n
-g

o
in

g
 

E
x
e
te

r 
C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

C
it
y
 C

e
n
tr

e
 M

a
n
a
g

e
r 

P
ri
v
a
te

 l
a
n
d
lo

rd
s
 

£
1
5
,0

0
0
 

T
o
 e

n
h
a
n
c
e
 t
h
e
 v

is
it
o
r 

e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
. 

R
e
g

u
la

r 
P

I 
m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a

n
d
 r

e
p
o
rt

s
 

A
n
n
u
a
l 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 

R
e
p
o
rt

 

C
it
y
 C

e
n
tr

e
 M

a
n
a
g

e
r 

E
x
e
te

r 
C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

C
it
y
 C

e
n
tr

e
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 

M
in

im
a
l 

T
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
e
 d

e
c
is

io
n
-m

a
k
in

g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 i
s
 w

e
ll 

in
fo

rm
e
d
, 

w
it
h
 r

e
lia

b
le

 a
n
d
 u

p
 t
o
 d

a
te

 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 C

it
y
 C

e
n
tr

e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

S
u
n
d
a
y
 T

ra
d
in

g
 H

o
u
rs

 
A

s
 

le
g

is
la

ti
o
n
 

c
o
m

e
s
 

fo
rw

a
rd

 

C
it
y
 C

e
n
tr

e
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 

E
x
e
te

r 
C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

N
il 

T
o
 c

a
p
it
a
lis

e
 o

n
 a

n
y
 l
o
n
g
-t

e
rm

 c
h
a
n
g

e
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

S
u
n
d
a
y
 t

ra
d
in

g
 r

e
g

u
la

ti
o
n
s
 –

 s
tr

e
n
g
th

e
n
in

g
 t
h
e
 

C
it
y
 C

e
n
tr

e
’s

 c
o
m

p
e
ti
ti
v
e
 p

o
s
it
io

n
 

A
im

 2
 –

 G
iv

in
g

 A
 B

e
tt

e
r 

F
ir

s
t 

Im
p

re
s
s
io

n
C

e
n
tr

a
l 
S

ta
ti
o
n
 F

o
re

c
o
u
rt

 e
n
h
a
n
c
e
m

e
n
t 

2
0
1
3
 

E
x
e
te

r 
C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

D
e
v
o
n
 C

o
u
n
ty

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

N
e
tw

o
rk

 R
a
il 

£
6
6
0
,0

0
0
 

T
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 b

e
s
t 

p
o
s
s
ib

le
 f

ir
s
t 

im
p
re

s
s
io

n
 t
o
 

C
it
y
 C

e
n
tr

e
 v

is
it
o
rs

 a
n
d
 e

n
s
u
ri
n
g
 a

 s
e
n
s
e
 o

f 
‘a

rr
iv

a
l’.

 
W

e
s
t 
Q

u
a
rt

e
r 

e
n
h
a
n
c
e
m

e
n
ts

 
2
0
1
5
 

E
x
e
te

r 
C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

L
o
c
a
l 
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 

D
e
v
o
n
 C

o
u
n
ty

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

T
o
 b

e
 

d
e
te

rm
in

e
d
 

T
o
 s

tr
e
n
g

th
e
n
 W

e
s
t 
Q

u
a
rt

e
r 

a
s
 a

 k
e
y
 h

u
b
 o

f 
in

d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 a

n
d
 c

a
fé

 c
u
lt
u
re

, 
d
ri
v
in

g
 f

o
o
tf

a
ll 

a
n
d
 ‘
s
ig

n
p
o
s
ti
n
g

’ W
e
s
t 
Q

u
a
rt

e
r 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 

C
o
n
n
e
c
ti
n
g
 F

o
re

 S
tr

e
e
t,
 t
h
e
 ‘W

e
s
t 
Q

u
a
rt

e
r’
 &

 
th

e
 Q

u
a
y
s
id

e
 

2
0
1
5
 

E
x
e
te

r 
C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

D
e
v
o
n
 C

o
u
n
ty

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

T
o
 b

e
 

d
e
te

rm
in

e
d
 

T
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
d
 p

e
d
e
s
tr

ia
n
 s

p
a
c
e
s
 b

y
 

im
p
ro

v
in

g
 a

c
c
e
s
s
ib

ili
ty

 t
h
ro

u
g

h
, 
a
n
d
 m

in
im

is
in

g
 

th
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 

tr
a
ff

ic
 i
n
, 
th

e
 W

e
s
t 
Q

u
a
rt

e
r.

 I
n
 

tu
rn

 t
h
is

 w
ill

 s
tr

e
n
g

th
e
n
 t
h
e
 a

tt
ra

c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 a

re
a
 t
o
 v

is
it
o
rs

 a
n
d
 s

h
o
p
p
e
rs

. 

Page 38



D
ra

ft
 0

4
/0

1
//

2
0
1
3
 

P
ro

je
c
t 

Y
e
a
r 

L
e
a
d

 
P

a
rt

n
e
rs

 
C

o
s
t 

E
s
ti

m
a
te

 
O

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

E
x
e
te

r 
S

t 
D

a
v
id

’s
 S

ta
ti
o
n
 F

o
re

c
o
u
rt

 
2
0
1
5
 

E
x
e
te

r 
C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

D
e
v
o
n
 C

o
u
n
ty

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

 
T

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 b

e
s
t 

p
o
s
s
ib

le
 f

ir
s
t 

im
p
re

s
s
io

n
 t
o
 

C
it
y
 v

is
it
o
rs

 a
n
d
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 a
 v

ib
ra

n
t 
s
p
a
c
e
 

d
e
liv

e
ri
n
g

 t
h
e
 s

e
n
s
e
 o

f 
a
rr

iv
a
l 
in

 a
 c

it
y
 o

f 
re

g
io

n
a
l 
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
c
e
. 

S
tr

e
e
t 
S

c
e
n
e
 –

 ‘
S

c
o
re

s
 o

n
 t

h
e
 F

lo
o
rs

’ 
S

c
h
e
m

e
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
r 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
o
rk

in
g

 
2
0
1
4
/2

0
1
5
 

E
x
e
te

r 
C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

C
it
y
 C

e
n
tr

e
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 

C
h
a
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

C
o
m

m
e
rc

e
 

T
o
 b

e
 

d
e
te

rm
in

e
d
 

B
u
ild

in
g

 o
n
 t

h
e
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 F

o
o
d
 H

y
g

ie
n
e
 

R
a
ti
n
g
 S

c
h
e
m

e
, 
to

 e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 t
o
 

ta
k
e
 m

o
re

 c
a
re

 w
it
h
 t

h
e
ir
 o

w
n
 e

x
te

rn
a
l 

h
o
u
s
e
k
e
e
p
in

g
 –

 r
e
fu

s
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
, 

c
u
s
to

m
e
r 

lit
te

r,
 f

ly
p
o
s
ti
n
g

 a
n
d
 g

ra
ff

it
i.
 A

 s
c
h
e
m

e
 t
h
a
t 

ra
te

s
 a

n
d
 r

e
c
o
g

n
is

e
s
 t

id
y
 p

re
m

is
e
s
 s

h
o
u
ld

 
h
e
lp

 b
ri
n
g
 a

b
o
u
t 
a
 c

le
a
n
e
r,

 b
ri
g

h
te

r 
C

it
y
 

C
e
n
tr

e
 a

n
d
 a

 m
o
re

 a
tt
ra

c
ti
v
e
 a

n
d
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
tr

a
d
in

g
 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
. 

T
a
x
i 
F

o
ru

m
 

2
0
1
3
 a

n
d
 

o
n
-g

o
in

g
 

E
x
e
te

r 
C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

M
in

im
a
l 
–
 

in
d
iv

id
u
a
l 

p
ro

je
c
t 
c
o
s
ts

 
to

 b
e
 

d
e
te

rm
in

e
d
 

R
e
c
o
g

n
is

in
g
 t
h
a
t 
ta

x
is

 a
re

 a
 c

ri
ti
c
a
l 
p
a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 

s
m

o
o
th

 o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 C

it
y
 C

e
n
tr

e
, 
a
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 T

a
x
i 
F

o
ru

m
 w

ill
 p

ro
v
id

e
 t

h
e
 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 t

o
 s

tr
e
n
g
th

e
n
 d

ia
lo

g
u
e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 

ta
x
i 
tr

a
d
e
 a

n
d
 i
n
 t
u
rn

 t
o
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 t

h
e
 t

a
x
i 

tr
a
d
e
 t

o
: 

�
 

D
e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 b

e
s
t 
p
o
s
s
ib

le
 c

u
s
to

m
e
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
, 

w
it
h
 w

e
ll 

in
fo

rm
e
d
 d

ri
v
e
rs

 
a
w

a
re

 o
f 

a
ll 

th
a
t 
th

e
 C

it
y
 C

e
n
tr

e
 h

a
s
 t
o
 

o
ff

e
r,

 o
f 

C
it
y
 C

e
n
tr

e
 a

tt
ra

c
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 

e
v
e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 o

f 
C

it
y
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
; 

�
 

E
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
ta

x
i 
p
ro

v
is

io
n
 (

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 

th
e
 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
C

it
y
 C

e
n
tr

e
 t

a
x
i 
ra

n
k
s
) 

is
 c

o
n
v
e
n
ie

n
t 

a
n
d
 c

le
a
rl
y
 ‘
s
ig

n
e
d
’;
 

�
 

P
ro

m
o
te

 a
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 a

n
d
 d

is
ti
n
c
ti
v
e
 

im
a
g

e
 f

o
r 

E
x
e
te

r 
ta

x
is

. 

Page 39



D
ra

ft
 0

4
/0

1
//

2
0
1
3
 

P
ro

je
c
t 

Y
e
a
r 

L
e
a
d

 
P

a
rt

n
e
rs

 
C

o
s
t 

E
s
ti

m
a
te

 
O

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

C
it
y
 C

h
a
m

p
io

n
s
/A

m
b
a
s
s
a
d
o
rs

 
2
0
1
5
 

E
x
e
te

r 
C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il

C
h
a
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

C
o
m

m
e
rc

e
 

E
x
e
te

r 
&

 H
e
a
rt

 o
f 

D
e
v
o
n
 

H
o
te

lie
rs

 &
 R

e
s
ta

u
ra

n
ts

 
A

s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
 

C
it
y
 C

e
n
tr

e
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 

M
in

im
a
l 

T
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

‘c
it
y
 g

a
te

k
e
e
p
e
rs

’/
fi
rs

t 
p
o
in

ts
 

o
f 

c
o
n
ta

c
t 

h
a
v
e
 a

 g
o
o
d
 k

n
o
w

le
d
g

e
 o

f 
E

x
e
te

r 
C

it
y
 C

e
n
tr

e
 (

fa
c
ili

ti
e
s
, 
a
tt
ra

c
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 h

is
to

ry
).

 
T

h
is

 w
ill

 b
e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

f 
ta

rg
e
te

d
 t
ra

in
in

g
 a

n
d
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 t

o
 t

a
x
i 

d
ri
v
e
rs

, 
h
o
te

lie
rs

, 
b
u
s
 d

ri
v
e
rs

 a
n
d
 o

th
e
r 

‘f
ro

n
tl
in

e
’ 
s
ta

ff
. 
In

 t
u
rn

, 
th

is
 w

ill
 l
e
a
d
 t

o
 

im
p
ro

v
e
d
 p

e
rc

e
p
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
E

x
e
te

r 
a
s
 ‘
fr

ie
n
d
ly

’ 
a
n
d
 ‘
s
a
fe

’,
 l
e
a
d
in

g
 t
o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 r

e
tu

rn
 v

is
it
s
 

a
n
d
 t
ra

d
e
. 

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
to

 C
a
th

e
d
ra

l 
&

 Q
u
a
y
 C

a
r 

P
a
rk

/C
it
y
 C

e
n
tr

e
 l
in

k
s
 t
h
ro

u
g

h
 S

o
u
th

 S
tr

e
e
t 

2
0
1
7
 

E
x
e
te

r 
C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

D
e
v
o
n
 C

o
u
n
ty

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

C
o
s
te

d
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 t

o
 

b
e
 d

e
v
is

e
d
 

T
o
 e

n
h
a
n
c
e
 t
h
e
 v

is
it
o
r 

e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
tl
y
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 f

ir
s
t 
im

p
re

s
s
io

n
s
 o

f 
th

e
 

C
it
y
 C

e
n
tr

e
 

C
it
y
 C

e
n
tr

e
 ‘
H

id
d
e
n
 P

o
c
k
e
ts

’ 
(f

o
r 

e
x
a
m

p
le

 
C

o
o
m

b
e
 S

tr
e
e
t,
 P

a
rl
ia

m
e
n
t 

S
tr

e
e
t 

&
 T

h
e
 

M
in

t)
 

2
0
1
7
 

E
x
e
te

r 
C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

D
e
v
o
n
 C

o
u
n
ty

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

C
o
s
te

d
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 t

o
 

b
e
 d

e
v
is

e
d
 

T
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

ta
rg

e
te

d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 

s
ig

n
a
g

e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 ‘
in

te
re

s
ti
n
g

’ 
h
id

d
e
n
 C

it
y
 C

e
n
tr

e
 

p
u
b
lic

 s
p
a
c
e
s
, 
le

a
d
in

g
 t
o
 e

n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 

p
e
rc

e
p
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
th

e
 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
lit

y
 a

n
d
 d

iv
e
rs

it
y
 

o
f 

E
x
e
te

r 
a
n
d
 e

n
h
a
n
c
in

g
 t
h
e
 a

tt
ra

c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 o

f 
–
 a

n
d
 v

is
it
o
rs

 e
n
jo

y
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

–
 t

h
e
 C

it
y
 C

e
n
tr

e
. 

P
u
b
lic

 T
o
ile

t 
p
ro

v
is

io
n
 (

to
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

T
o
ile

t 
S

c
h
e
m

e
) 

C
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
 t

o
 b

e
 g

iv
e

n
 t

o
 ‘
L
o
o
 o

f 
th

e
 

Y
e
a
r’
 a

w
a
rd

 s
c
h
e
m

e
 i
n
 2

0
1
4
. 

O
n
-g

o
in

g
 

E
x
e
te

r 
C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

C
o
s
te

d
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 t

o
 

b
e
 d

e
v
is

e
d
 

T
o
 s

tr
e
n
g

th
e
n
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

f 
p
u
b
lic

 t
o
ile

ts
 i
n
 

te
rm

s
 o

f 
q

u
a
lit

y
 a

n
d
 a

c
c
e
s
s
ib

ili
ty

 –
 a

n
d
 

im
p
ro

v
e
 t

h
e
 v

is
it
o
r 

e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
. 

‘C
h
u
g

g
e
rs

’ 
P

o
lic

y
 

2
0
1
3
 

E
x
e
te

r 
C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

E
x
e
te

r 
C

h
a
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

C
o
m

m
e
rc

e
 

C
h
a
ri
ty

 C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 

M
in

im
a
l 

T
o
 e

n
h
a
n
c
e
 t
h
e
 v

is
it
o
r 

e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 b

y
 

a
g
re

e
in

g
 c

o
n
tr

o
ls

 o
n
 ‘
c
h
u
g
g

e
r’
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

C
it
y
 C

e
n
tr

e
, 
w

it
h
 a

 c
o
d
e
 o

f 
c
o
n
d
u
c
t 
to

 s
tr

ik
e
 

th
e
 r

ig
h
t 

b
a
la

n
c
e
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 c

h
a
ri
ta

b
le

 
d
o
n
a
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
it
c
h
e
s
, 

n
u
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

c
h
u
g
g

e
rs

 a
n
d
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

d
a
y
s
 o

n
 

w
h

ic
h
 ‘
c
h
u
g
g

e
rs

’ 
a
re

 p
e
rm

is
s
ib

le
. 

Page 40



D
ra

ft
 0

4
/0

1
//

2
0
1
3
 

P
ro

je
c
t 

Y
e
a
r 

L
e
a
d

 
P

a
rt

n
e
rs

 
C

o
s
t 

E
s
ti

m
a
te

 
O

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

A
im

 3
 –

 D
e
li

v
e
ri

n
g

 a
 v

ib
ra

n
t 

C
it

y
 C

e
n

tr
e
 t

h
a
t 

o
ff

e
rs

 a
tt

ra
c
ti

o
n

s
 f

o
r 

a
ll

 
C

a
s
tl
e
 Q

u
a
rt

e
r 

–
 d

e
liv

e
ry

/s
tr

e
n
g

th
e
n
in

g
 o

f 
a
 

c
u
lt
u
ra

l 
q

u
a
rt

e
r 

in
 t
h
e
 C

it
y
 C

e
n
tr

e
 

2
0
1
4
 –

 
c
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 

o
f 

fe
a
s
ib

ili
ty

 
s
tu

d
y
/d

e
liv

e
ry

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 

E
x
e
te

r 
P

h
o
e
n
ix

 
E

x
e
te

r 
C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

D
e
v
o
n
 C

o
u
n
ty

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

E
x
e
te

r 
C

h
a
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

C
o
m

m
e
rc

e
 

C
o
s
ts

 t
o
 b

e
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

T
o
 s

tr
e
n
g

th
e
n
 t

h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
o
ff

e
r 

o
f 

th
e
 C

it
y
 

C
e
n
tr

e
 –

 e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 v

is
it
o
rs

 a
re

 e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
d
 t
o
 

v
is

it
 t

h
e
 g

re
a
te

s
t 
p
o
s
s
ib

le
 r

a
n
g

e
 o

f 
c
it
y
 

a
tt
ra

c
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 m

a
x
im

is
in

g
 C

it
y
 C

e
n
tr

e
 d

w
e
ll 

ti
m

e
. 

S
tr

e
e
t 
T

ra
d
in

g
 –

 R
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
s
tr

e
e
t 

tr
a
d
in

g
/s

tr
e
e
t 
tr

a
d
in

g
 r

e
g
u
la

ti
o
n
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 

C
it
y
 C

e
n
tr

e
 

2
0
1
3
 

E
x
e
te

r 
C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

D
e
v
o
n
 C

o
u
n
ty

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

E
x
e
te

r 
C

h
a
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

C
o
m

m
e
rc

e
 

C
it
y
 C

e
n
tr

e
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 

C
o
s
ts

 t
o
 b

e
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

T
o
 r

e
c
o
g

n
is

e
 t

h
e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
o
f 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 s
tr

e
e
t 

tr
a
d
in

g
 t
o
 e

n
h
a
n
c
e
 t
h
e
 v

ib
ra

n
c
y
 o

f 
th

e
 C

it
y
 

C
e
n
tr

e
; 
to

 u
s
e
 d

e
s
ig

n
a
te

d
 s

tr
e
e
t 
tr

a
d
in

g
 a

n
d
 

‘s
tr

e
e
t 
fo

o
d
’ 
a
re

a
s
 a

s
 a

 m
e
c
h
a
n
is

m
 f

o
r 

d
ra

w
in

g
 

fo
o
tf
a
ll 

in
 t

o
 ‘
s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

’ 
re

ta
ili

n
g

 a
re

a
s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 

C
a
s
tl
e
 S

tr
e
e
t 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 C

u
lt
u
ra

l 
Q

u
a
rt

e
r 

&
 F

o
re

 
S

tr
e
e
t 
a
n
d
 t

h
e
 W

e
s
t 
Q

u
a
rt

e
r.

 
R

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
u
s
e
 o

f 
N

o
rt

h
e
rn

h
a
y
 &

 R
o
u
g

e
m

o
n
t 

G
a
rd

e
n
s
 a

n
d
 S

o
u
th

e
rn

h
a
y
 

2
0
1
3
 

E
x
e
te

r 
C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

E
x
e
te

r 
C

h
a
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

C
o
m

m
e
rc

e
 

D
e
v
o
n
 C

o
u
n
ty

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

C
o
s
ts

 t
o
 b

e
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

S
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 f
o
r 

in
c
re

a
s
in

g
 u

s
e
 o

f 
g

re
e
n
 s

p
a
c
e
s
 a

t 
th

e
 h

e
a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 C

it
y
 C

e
n
tr

e
, 

d
e
liv

e
ri
n
g

 e
n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 C

it
y
 C

e
n
tr

e
 v

ib
ra

n
c
y
 a

n
d
 

m
a
k
in

g
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
c
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 s

a
fe

ty
 

a
n
d
 a

tt
ra

c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 o

f 
k
e
y
 C

it
y
 C

e
n
tr

e
 g

re
e
n
 

s
p
a
c
e
s
. 
 

C
h
ri
s
tm

a
s
 M

a
rk

e
t 

2
0
1
2
 –

 f
ir
s
t 

y
e
a
r 

E
x
e
te

r 
C

a
th

e
d
ra

l 
E

x
e
te

r 
C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

E
x
e
te

r 
C

h
a
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

C
o
m

m
e
rc

e
 

E
x
e
te

r 
&

 H
e
a
rt

 o
f 

D
e
v
o
n
 

H
o
te

lie
rs

 &
 R

e
s
ta

u
ra

n
ts

 
A

s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
 

M
in

im
a
l 

In
c
o
m

e
 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 

T
o
 s

tr
e
n
g

th
e
n
 t

h
e
 a

tt
ra

c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 o

f 
E

x
e
te

r 
a
s
 a

 
v
is

it
o
r 

d
e
s
ti
n
a
ti
o
n
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 C

h
ri
s
tm

a
s
 

s
h
o
p
p
in

g
 p

e
ri
o
d
, 
w

it
h
 a

n
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
C

h
ri
s
tm

a
s
 

M
a
rk

e
t.
 Y

e
a
r-

o
n
-y

e
a
r 

g
ro

w
th

 t
o
 b

e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
. 

C
h
ri
s
tm

a
s
 L

ig
h
ts

 
O

n
-g

o
in

g
 

E
x
e
te

r 
C

h
a
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

C
o
m

m
e
rc

e
 

E
x
e
te

r 
C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

s
p
o
n
s
o
rs

 
C

it
y
 C

e
n
tr

e
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 -

 
B

ID
 

£
7
0
,0

0
0
 

a
n
n
u
a
lly

 
T

o
 s

e
c
u
re

 n
e
w

 f
u
n
d
in

g
 s

tr
e
a
m

s
 t
h
a
t 
d
e
liv

e
r 

C
h
ri
s
tm

a
s
 L

ig
h
ts

 t
h
a
t 

a
re

 u
n
iq

u
e
, 

in
n
o
v
a
ti
v
e
 

a
n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 c

it
y
’s

 c
o
m

p
e
ti
ti
v
e
 p

o
s
it
io

n
. 

Page 41



D
ra

ft
 0

4
/0

1
//

2
0
1
3
 

P
ro

je
c
t 

Y
e
a
r 

L
e
a
d

 
P

a
rt

n
e
rs

 
C

o
s
t 

E
s
ti

m
a
te

 
O

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

R
e
n
o
v
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 r

e
g

u
la

r 
S

u
m

m
e
r 

u
s
e
 o

f 
N

o
rt

h
e
rn

h
a
y
 b

a
n
d
s
ta

n
d
 

2
0
1
4
 

E
x
e
te

r 
C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

L
o
tt

e
ry

 f
u
n
d
in

g
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

s
p
o
n
s
o
rs

 

£
5
0
,0

0
0
 

T
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

in
c
re

a
s
e
d
 v

ib
ra

n
c
y
 i
n
 a

n
d
 u

s
e
 o

f 
N

o
rt

h
e
rn

h
a
y
 G

a
rd

e
n
s
 –

 r
e
d
u
c
in

g
 i
n
c
id

e
n
ts

 o
f 

a
n
ti
-s

o
c
ia

l 
b
e
h
a
v
io

u
r 

a
n
d
 e

n
c
o
u
ra

g
in

g
 w

id
e
r 

u
s
e
 o

f 
a
 k

e
y
 C

it
y
 C

e
n
tr

e
 p

a
rk

. 
C

it
y
 C

e
n
tr

e
 W

iF
i 
a
n
d
 4

G
 

2
0
1
4
 

C
it
y
 C

e
n
tr

e
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s

E
x
e
te

r 
C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

P
ri
v
a
te

 s
e
c
to

r 
p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 
C

it
y
 C

e
n
tr

e
 l
a
n
d
lo

rd
s
 

C
o
s
ts

 t
o
 b

e
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

D
e
liv

e
ri
n
g

 a
 m

o
re

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 f
ri
e
n
d
ly

 C
it
y
 

C
e
n
tr

e
. 

A
im

 4
 –

 A
c
h

ie
v
in

g
 a

n
 E

v
e
n

 S
a
fe

r 
E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 
E

x
p
a
n
s
io

n
 o

f 
E

x
e
te

r 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 A

g
a
in

s
t 

C
ri
m

e
 (

E
B

A
C

).
 A

n
n
u
a
l 
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

P
la

n
 

A
n
n
u
a
lly

 
C

it
y
 C

e
n
tr

e
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 

E
x
e
te

r 
C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

N
il 

c
o
s
t 
to

 
p
u
b
lic

 s
e
c
to

r.
 

A
n
n
u
a
l 

c
o
s
ti
n
g

 o
f 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

p
la

n
 

T
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

a
 s

a
fe

r,
 m

o
re

 w
e

lc
o
m

in
g

, 
C

it
y
 

C
e
n
tr

e
 a

n
d
 e

n
s
u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 C

it
y
 C

e
n
tr

e
 b

e
c
o
m

e
s
 

le
s
s
 o

f 
a
 t
a
rg

e
t 
fo

r 
s
h
o
p
lif

te
rs

, 
c
ri
m

in
a
l 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 

&
 a

n
ti
-s

o
c
ia

l 
b
e
h
a
v
io

u
r 

E
x
te

n
d
 t

h
e
 E

B
A

C
 r

a
d
io

 n
e
tw

o
rk

 t
o
 c

o
v
e
r 

a
ll 

C
it
y
 C

e
n
tr

e
 p

u
b
s
 a

n
d
 c

lu
b
s
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
r 

v
e
n
u
e
s
 w

h
e
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 

2
0
1
4
 

C
it
y
 C

e
n
tr

e
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 

E
x
e
te

r 
C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

D
e
v
o
n
 &

 C
o
rn

w
a
ll 

P
o
lic

e
 

L
ic

e
n
s
e
d
 V

ic
tu

a
lle

rs
 

A
s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
 

M
in

im
a
l 
c
o
s
t 

to
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

C
o
s
t 
to

 
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 o

f 
a
p
p
ro

x
im

a
te

ly
 

£
4
5
0
 p

e
r 

ra
d
io

 

T
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

a
 s

a
fe

r,
 m

o
re

 w
e

lc
o
m

in
g

, 
C

it
y
 c

e
n
tr

e
 

d
u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 e

v
e
n
in

g
 p

e
ri
o
d
 

C
h
ild

 S
a
fe

 Z
o
n
e
 –

 E
x
p
a
n
d
in

g
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 

b
e
y
o
n
d
 t

h
e
 G

u
ild

h
a
ll 

S
h
o
p
p
in

g
 

C
e
n
tr

e
/P

ri
n
c
e
s
s
h
a
y
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 

2
0
1
5
 

C
it
y
 C

e
n
tr

e
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 

E
x
e
te

r 
C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

D
e
v
o
n
 &

 C
o
rn

w
a
ll 

P
o
lic

e
 

B
ID

 
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

C
o
s
ts

 t
o
 b

e
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

T
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

a
 m

o
re

 f
a
m

ily
-f

ri
e
n
d
ly

 s
h
o
p
p
in

g
 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t,
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

s
tr

e
n
g
th

e
n
in

g
 c

o
m

p
e
ti
ti
v
e
 

p
o
s
it
io

n
 o

v
e
r 

o
th

e
r 

re
g

io
n
a
l 
s
h
o
p
p
in

g
 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
s
. 

A
im

 5
 –

 S
e
c
u

ri
n

g
 a

 w
e
lc

o
m

in
g

, 
v
ib

ra
n

t 
a
n

d
 s

a
fe

 e
v
e
n

in
g

 e
c
o

n
o

m
y
 

D
e
liv

e
r 

a
c
ti
v
e
 E

x
e
te

r 
N

ig
h
t 
ti
m

e
 E

c
o
n
o
m

y
 

G
ro

u
p
 

O
n
-g

o
in

g
 

C
it
y
 C

e
n
tr

e
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 

E
x
e
te

r 
C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

D
e
v
o
n
 &

 C
o
rn

w
a
ll 

P
o
lic

e
 

C
o
s
ts

 t
o
 b

e
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 o

n
 a

 
p
ro

je
c
t 

b
y
 

p
ro

je
c
t 

b
a
s
is

 

T
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 t

h
e
 E

x
e
te

r 
e
v
e
n
in

g
 

e
c
o
n
o
m

y
, 

e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 C

it
y
 C

e
n
tr

e
 i
s
 a

n
 

a
tt
ra

c
ti
v
e
 a

n
d
 s

a
fe

 p
la

c
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 e

v
e
n
in

g
 f

o
r 

th
e
 

b
ro

a
d
e
s
t 
p
o
s
s
ib

le
 c

ro
s
s
-s

e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
. 

Page 42



D
ra

ft
 0

4
/0

1
//

2
0
1
3
 

P
ro

je
c
t 

Y
e
a
r 

L
e
a
d

 
P

a
rt

n
e
rs

 
C

o
s
t 

E
s
ti

m
a
te

 
O

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

T
o
p
 1

0
 p

ro
b
le

m
 p

re
m

is
e
s
 –

 r
e
g

u
la

r 
re

v
ie

w
 

a
n
d
 p

u
b
lic

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
. 

A
 w

ill
in

g
n
e
s
s
 

o
f 

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 A

u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 t

o
 s

e
e
k
 f

o
rm

a
l 

re
v
ie

w
s
 w

h
e
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 

O
n
-g

o
in

g
 

D
e
v
o
n
 &

 C
o
rn

w
a
ll 

P
o
lic

e
 

E
x
e
te

r 
C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

M
in

im
a
l 
c
o
s
t 

T
o
 s

e
c
u
re

 t
h
e
 s

a
fe

s
t 
p
o
s
s
ib

le
 e

v
e
n
in

g
 

e
c
o
n
o
m

y
 e

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t,
 e

n
s
u
ri
n
g
 a

 p
o
s
it
iv

e
 

re
p
u
ta

ti
o
n
 f

o
r 

th
e
 C

it
y
 C

e
n
tr

e
 a

s
 a

 v
is

it
o
r 

d
e
s
ti
n
a
ti
o
n
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 e

v
e
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 n

ig
h
t-

ti
m

e
 

p
e
ri
o
d
. 

T
o
 e

x
a
m

in
e
 t

h
e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
o
f 

E
a
rl
y
 M

o
rn

in
g

 
A

lc
o
h
o
l 
R

e
s
tr

ic
ti
o
n
 O

rd
e
rs

 
2
0
1
4
 

D
e
v
o
n
 &

 C
o
rn

w
a
ll 

P
o
lic

e
 

E
x
e
te

r 
C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

C
it
y
 C

e
n
tr

e
 l
ic

e
n
s
e
e
s
 

C
it
y
 C

e
n
tr

e
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 

C
o
s
ts

 t
o
 b

e
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
, 

b
u
t 

lik
e
ly

 t
o
 b

e
 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t.
 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 

w
o
u

ld
 b

e
 l
ik

e
ly

 
to

 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
n
 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

s
a
v
in

g
s
 i
n
 

re
la

ti
o
n
 t

o
 

p
o
lic

in
g

 c
o
s
ts

 
a
n
d
 

c
le

a
n
s
in

g
/m

a
in

t
e
n
a
n
c
e
 c

o
s
ts

 

A
 n

e
w

 p
o
w

e
r 

th
a
t 

s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
. 

L
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 ‘
p
re

-l
o
a
d
in

g
’.
 S

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 i
n
 s

a
fe

ty
 –

 a
n
d
 

p
e
rc

e
iv

e
d
 s

a
fe

ty
 –

 o
f 

C
it
y
 C

e
n
tr

e
. 
A

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 

im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 b

ro
a
d
e
n
in

g
-o

u
t 
th

e
 a

tt
ra

c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 

o
f 

th
e
 C

it
y
 C

e
n
tr

e
 a

t 
n
ig

h
t 
to

 t
h
e
 w

id
e
s
t 

p
o
s
s
ib

le
 c

ro
s
s
-s

e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
. 

H
2
0
 P

ro
je

c
t 

2
0
1
3
 

O
n
-g

o
in

g
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 

D
e
v
o
n
 &

 C
o
rn

w
a
ll 

P
o
lic

e
 

E
x
e
te

r 
C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

C
it
y
 C

e
n
tr

e
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 

M
in

im
a
l 
c
o
s
t 

–
 

to
 b

e
 m

e
t 

b
y
 

in
d
iv

id
u
a
l 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 

E
v
id

e
n
c
e
 f

o
rm

 o
th

e
r 

lo
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 i
s
 t
h
a
t 
w

a
te

r 
m

a
c
h
in

e
s
 o

ff
e
ri
n
g
 f
re

e
 w

a
te

r 
to

 c
u
s
to

m
e
rs

 
h
a
s
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

im
p
a
c
t 
in

 r
e
d
u
c
in

g
 d

ri
n
k
 

re
la

te
d
 a

n
ti
-s

o
c
ia

l 
b
e
h
a
v
io

u
r 

a
n
d
 c

ri
m

e
. 

A
n
 i
n
it
ia

l 
tr

ia
l 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

lly
 r

u
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

C
it
y
 C

e
n
tr

e
, 
w

it
h
 t

h
e
 t
ri
a
l 
a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 s

u
c
h
 

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
 t
h
a
t 
it
’s

 b
e
in

g
 u

s
e
d
 a

s
 a

 m
o
d
e
l f

o
r 

D
e
v
o
n
-w

id
e
 a

c
ti
o
n
. 
T

h
e
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e
 i
s
 n

o
w

 t
o
 

b
ro

a
d
e
n
 t
h
e
 b

e
n
e
fi
t 

in
 E

x
e
te

r 
b
y
 e

n
s
u
ri
n
g

 
c
it
y
-w

id
e
 t

a
k
e
-u

p
 i
n
 c

lu
b
s
 a

n
d
 p

u
b
s
. 

T
a
x
i 
R

a
n
k
 P

ro
v
is

io
n
 

O
n
-g

o
in

g
 

D
e
v
o
n
 C

o
u
n
ty

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

D
e
v
o
n
 &

 C
o
rn

w
a
ll 

P
o
lic

e
 

E
x
e
te

r 
C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

C
o
s
ts

 t
o
 b

e
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

R
a
n
k
 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
, 
s
iz

e
 a

n
d
 m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

h
a
v
e
 a

 
m

a
jo

r 
p
ro

v
e
n
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
n
 s

a
fe

 a
n
d
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
t 

d
is

p
e
rs

a
l 
o
f 

la
te

-n
ig

h
t 

e
c
o
n
o
m

y
 u

s
e
rs

. 

Page 43



D
ra

ft
 0

4
/0

1
//

2
0
1
3
 

P
ro

je
c
t 

Y
e
a
r 

L
e
a
d

 
P

a
rt

n
e
rs

 
C

o
s
t 

E
s
ti

m
a
te

 
O

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

L
ic

e
n
s
in

g
 o

f 
S

e
x
 E

s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
ts

 –
 R

e
v
ie

w
 

2
0
1
3
 

E
x
e
te

r 
C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

D
e
v
o
n
 &

 C
o
rn

w
a
ll 

P
o
lic

e
 

N
il 

T
o
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

w
h
a
t 

ro
le

 s
e
x
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
ts

 
(s

e
x
 s

h
o
p
s
 a

n
d
 s

e
x
u
a
l 
e
n
te

rt
a
in

m
e
n
t 
v
e
n
u
e
s
 

s
u
c
h
 a

s
 l
a
p
-d

a
n
c
in

g
 c

lu
b
s
) 

p
la

y
 i
n
 t

h
e
 C

it
y
 

C
e
n
tr

e
. 

P
u
rp

le
 F

la
g
 A

w
a
rd

 
2
0
1
4
/2

0
1
5
 

D
e
v
o
n
 &

 C
o
rn

w
a
ll 

P
o
lic

e
 

E
x
e
te

r 
C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

U
n
iv

e
rs

it
y
 o

f 
E

x
e
te

r 
E

x
e
te

r 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 -

 B
ID

 

C
o
s
ts

 t
o
 b

e
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

A
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 P

u
rp

le
 F

la
g
 s

ta
tu

s
 –

 t
h
e
 m

e
a
s
u
re

 
o
f 

th
e
 s

a
fe

s
t 

a
n
d
 m

o
s
t 
w

e
lc

o
m

in
g
 U

K
 t

o
w

n
s
 

a
n
d
 c

it
ie

s
 a

t 
n
ig

h
t 

–
 w

o
u
ld

 d
e
liv

e
r 

a
 r

a
n
g

e
 o

f 
b
e
n
e
fi
ts

 f
o
r 

th
e
 C

it
y
 C

e
n
tr

e
. 
B

e
n
e
fi
ts

 w
o
u
ld

 
in

c
lu

d
e
: 

�
 

A
 r

a
is

e
d
 p

ro
fi
le

 a
n
d
 a

n
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 

p
u
b
lic

 i
m

a
g

e
 f

o
r 

th
e
 C

it
y
 C

e
n
tr

e
; 

�
 

In
c
re

a
s
e
d
 v

is
it
o
r 

n
u
m

b
e
rs

; 
�

 
In

c
re

a
s
e
d
 e

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

; 
�

 
F

u
rt

h
e
r 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 l
e
v
e
ls

 o
f 

c
ri
m

e
 

a
n
d
 a

n
ti
-s

o
c
ia

l 
b
e
h
a
v
io

u
r;

 
�

 
T

h
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

a
 m

o
re

 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
m

ix
e
d
-u

s
e
 e

c
o
n
o
m

y
. 

T
a
x
i 
M

a
rs

h
a
lls

 
2
0
1
5
 

D
e
v
o
n
 &

 C
o
rn

w
a
ll 

P
o
lic

e
 

E
x
e
te

r 
C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

U
n
iv

e
rs

it
y
 o

f 
E

x
e
te

r 
E

x
e
te

r 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 -

 B
ID

 

C
o
s
ts

 t
o
 b

e
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

T
o
 s

e
c
u
re

 t
h
e
 s

a
fe

s
t 
p
o
s
s
ib

le
 e

v
e
n
in

g
 

e
c
o
n
o
m

y
 e

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t,
 e

n
s
u
ri
n
g
 a

 p
o
s
it
iv

e
 

re
p
u
ta

ti
o
n
 f

o
r 

th
e
 C

it
y
 C

e
n
tr

e
 a

s
 a

 v
is

it
o
r 

d
e
s
ti
n
a
ti
o
n
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 e

v
e
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 n

ig
h
t-

ti
m

e
 

p
e
ri
o
d
. 

B
e
tt

in
g

 S
h
o
p
s
 –

 R
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
P

o
lic

y
/P

ro
v
is

io
n
 

2
0
1
4
 

E
x
e
te

r 
C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

N
il 

T
o
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

w
h
a
t 

ro
le

 b
e
tt

in
g

 s
h
o
p
s
 p

la
y
 i
n
 

th
e
 C

it
y
 C

e
n
tr

e
, 
e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 t

h
a
t 

o
v
e
r-

p
ro

v
is

io
n
 

d
o
e
s
 n

o
t 
d
e
tr

a
c
t 
fr

o
m

 t
h
e
 c

o
re

 C
it
y
 C

e
n
tr

e
 

re
ta

ili
n
g

 a
re

a
. 

Page 44



Draft 04/01//2013 
Appendix A

STRENGTHS WEAKNESSES

Exeter Economy
Strength of Exeter professional and business 
services and business quarters & East Devon 
Growth Point progress, including the development 
of Cranbrook 

Location
Strategic location within South West Region 
Proximity to the Coast (particularly the Jurassic 
Coast World Heritage Site), Exmoor, Dartmoor 

Access
Access to, and within, the City Centre is generally 
good – although see also Weaknesses and Threats
Good – and improving – rail links 
Range of key rail services running to heart of City 
Centre, with excellent access to CBD from Central 
Station 

Retail Mix 
Mix of major retailers and independents 

‘Townscape’
Compact City Centre ‘core’ – easy to navigate and 
‘understand’ 
Attractive hidden ‘pockets’ – such as St Catherine’s 
Almshouses 
Historic, interesting, buildings and townscape 
Cathedral Green 

Safety 
City Centre generally considered to be ‘safe and 
secure’ 
Excellent network of CCTV 

Eating/Drinking 
Great – and improving – mix of good quality cafes 
and restaurants 

Public Art

Car Parking
Quality of Car Parking stock and amount of user-
friendly ‘pay on foot’ parking 

Pedestrian Signage

Park & Ride – Good, & improving, provision 

Facilities
Strong cultural facilities – RAMM, Bike Shed 
Theatre, Phoenix, Spacex Gallery 
Good heritage offer – Cathedral, Quayside, 
Underground Passages, City Centre churches, City 
Wall 
Excellent green lungs at the heart of the City Centre 
– Rougemont, Northernhay, Southernhay 

Education
Top 10 University – major driver for City Centre 
economy 

Access
Perception of City centre as challenging to access 
Perception of Exeter as remote form key national 
population centres 

‘Townscape’
Large elements of 50s redeveloped City Centre – 
specifically Sidwell Street, Bus Station, ‘top’ of Fore 
Street 
Blank return frontages on Queen Street, adjacent to 
High Street 
‘Presence’ of Guildhall Shopping Centre on Queen 
Street 
‘Concrete Canyons’ of Cultural Quarter – Musgrave 
Row, area around Central Library, Telephone 
Exchange 
‘Linear’ City Centre 
City Centre ‘gateways’ arguably give a poor 
impression of the City Centre 

Park & Ride – lack of provision to serve northern 
City Centre catchment 

Business Engagement 
Lack of a City Centre BID 

Eating/Drinking
Remaining focus on evening economy businesses 
with a sole focus on drinking in specific areas of the 
City Centre 

Pedestrian Signage – questionable as to whether 
signage drives footfall to ‘secondary’ retailing areas 

Facilities
Poor provision for teenagers - & arguably for 
families with young children 

Opening Hours 
Poor offer 

Retail Mix
Perception of ‘Clone City’ 

Web 
Weakness of information on City Centre shopping 
provision 

Public Art – some needs ‘refreshing’ 

Page 45



Draft 04/01//2013 

OPPORTUNITIES THREATS

BID
Support for a City Centre BID will unlock substantial 
additional income streams for the promotion, 
marketing and enhancement of the City Centre. 

Access 
Park & Ride – opportunities from delivery of Park & 
Ride to serve northern City Centre catchment 
Strengthening of tourism with increasing capacity of 
and expansion of Exeter Airport 

Gateways
Improvements to key City Centre gateways – 
Western Way/Paris Street roundabout, St David’s 
Station, Central Station 
Opportunities for ‘gateways’ to some shopping 
areas – specifically Castle Street, Fore Street & 
‘West Quarter’ 

Retail Mix
Could be significantly enhanced 
John Lewis effect 
Opportunities arising from the development of new, 
specialist, markets 

Opening Hours
Significant opportunity for extending opening hours
Connecting day and night time economies 

‘Public Spaces’ 
Opportunity to make more of public spaces – 
specifically Cathedral Green 
Opportunities from further driving ‘pedestrianisation’ 
agenda forward 

Townscape 
Opportunities to drive more obvious pedestrian 
‘circuits’ to offset disadvantages of ‘linear’ City 
Centre 
‘Interpretation’ of historic core/City Walls 
Development of iconic new buildings 

More celebration of what’s great about Exeter!

Information & Communication 
Opportunities to turn more businesses/business 
people/city workers in to City Centre 
‘ambassadors’/’information experts’ 

Festivals & Culture 
Opportunity to grow festivals offer and year-round 
cultural activity 
Development of Exeter as a hub for the performing 
arts within the region 

Eating & Drinking 
Opportunity to grow reputation of Exeter as a centre 
for gastronomy 

Facilities
Growing the ‘Castle Quarter’ offer – strengthening 
interface between RAMM, Phoenix, Library & Castle
Improving City Centre hotel offer 

‘Townscape’
Large elements of 50s redeveloped City Centre – 
specifically Sidwell Street, Bus Station, ‘top’ of Fore 
Street 
Blank return frontages on Queen Street, adjacent 
to High Street 
‘Presence’ of Guildhall Shopping Centre on Queen 
Street 
‘Concrete Canyons’ of Cultural Quarter – Musgrave 
Row, area around Central Library, Telephone 
Exchange 
‘Linear’ City Centre 
City Centre ‘gateways’ arguably give a poor 
impression of the City Centre 

Safety
Risk to CCTV effectiveness from staff availability 
for monitoring 
Continuing reductions in Police numbers 

Opening Hours 
Failure to connect day and night time economies 
likely to result in inability to change ‘dynamic’ of 
City centre at night 

‘Spaces’ 
‘Pedestrianisation’ agenda may result in increasing 
congestion on the edge of the city centre and on 
key ‘cross City Centre’ routes 

Access
Increases in car parking charges may impact on 
City Centre’s competitiveness 
Failure of Exeter Airport to reach growth 
opportunities, with loss of business and tourism to 
Bristol hub 
Perception of City centre as challenging to access 
Perception of Exeter as remote form key national 
population centres 

Image
Exeter perceived as old-fashioned, traditional & 
sleepy 

Multi Purpose City Centre Venue – Corn 
Exchange capacity limiting 

Economy/Market Conditions 
Ongoing challenges to retailing from tough 
recessionary pressures 
Risks to local economy from public sector cuts 
Reduced visitor numbers to Exeter as a result of 
people finding cheaper holidaying options 
elsewhere in the UK/in Europe 

BID
Failure of City Centre businesses to support 

Page 46



  

C
IT

Y
 C

E
N

T
R

E
 S

T
R

A
T

E
G

Y
 

K
E

Y
 M

IL
E

S
T

O
N

E
S

/D
E

A
D

L
IN

E
S

 2
0
1

3
 

  
J

A
N

U
A

R
Y

 
F

E
B

R
U

A
R

Y
 

M
A

R
C

H
 

A
P

R
IL

 
M

A
Y

 
J

U
N

E
 

J
U

L
Y

 

P
ro

je
c

t 
Id

e
n

ti
fi

c
a

ti
o

n
/D

o
c

u
m

e
n

t 
R

e
v
ie

w

 
 

 
 

R
e

v
is

io
n

s
 t

o
 

p
ro

je
c
ts

 
s
u

m
m

a
ry

 

R
e

v
is

io
n

s
 t

o
 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 
e

le
m

e
n

ts
 

 
 

 

M
e

e
ti

n
g

/C
o

m
m

it
te

e
 

C
o

n
s

id
e

ra
ti

o
n

 
D

ra
ft

 f
o

r 
p

u
b

lic
/b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 t
o

: 

E
C

C
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 

C
o

m
m

it
te

e
 –

 
E

c
o

n
o
m

y
 1

7
/0

1

E
C

C
 E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 
2

2
/0

1

 
 

 
T

o
 E

C
C

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 

C
o

m
m

it
te

e
, 

E
c
o

n
o
m

y
 f

o
r 

fi
n
a

l 
ra

ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 

3
0

/0
5

T
o
 C

C
M

P
B

 
(J

u
n

e
),

 E
C

C
 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 
(1

8
/0

6
) 

fo
r 

fi
n
a

l 
ra

ti
fi
c
a
ti
o

n
 

C
o

n
s

u
lt

a
ti

o
n

D
is

c
u

s
s
io

n
 w

it
h

 

K
e

y
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 

a
n

d
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 

A
s
s
im

ila
ti
o

n
 o

f 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 

re
s
p

o
n

s
e

s
 

 
 

 

L
a

u
n

c
h

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Page 47



Page 48

This page is intentionally left blank



CivicSustainableDevelopmentProposal.doc 

EXETER CITY COUNCIL 

EXECUTIVE  
22 JANUARY 2013 

CIVIC PROPERITES - SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT PROPOSAL

1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 

1.1 To note the decision taken by the Chief Executive in consultation with the Leader of 
the Council to agree to install photovoltaic arrays on four Council roof areas, which 
would help reduce the carbon emissions, meet pledges made as required by the 
Climate Change Act, demonstrate a culture of carbon awareness, as well as 
providing an on-going reduction in the Council’s energy costs. 

      
2. BACKGROUND 

2.1 Members will be aware of the Government’s pledges to reduce the reliance on 
carbon energy and use sustainable energy methods.  

  
2.2 Following the need to remove the wind turbines from the roof of the Civic Centre on 

safety grounds, officers have been looking at the opportunity to take advantage of the 
roof space and utilise proven sustainable technology that will produce long term 
savings.  Other sites have also been explored.  

2.3 In view of the changes in the financial incentives available for such schemes, the 
Chief Executive, in consultation with the Leader of the Council has taken the decision 
to approve four schemes.  In accordance with the Council’s constitution, such a 
decision needs to be reported to the Executive at the earliest opportunity. 

3. PROJECT BACKGROUND  

3.1� Crucial to the project is the Government’s Feed-In-Tariff scheme (FIT), which is a 
policy that is used to dramatically increase the use of renewable energy, by providing 
a long term financial incentive for investment.  Under the scheme energy companies 
are obligated to pay an inflation linked payment, based upon the number of Kilo-watt 
hours for electricity generated from renewable sources.  The FIT is designed to last 
25 years.  Due to the popularity of this scheme, the FIT has already been reduced 
from that previously offered and this payment continues to be cut by the government.  
If the Council was to undertake this project, it needs to be done now, as the FIT 
scheme will be further reduced for new projects after April 2013. 

3.2 In addition to the FIT, photovoltaic installations also bring a saving in reduced utility 
bills, as well as an additional payment from the sale of any surplus kWh fed back 
onto the national grid (Export Tariff).  

3.3 To date, the only civic building fitted with a solar array is at Belle Isle Nursery which 
was commissioned in October 2011.  The solar array, incorporated into a new 
Tractor Shed roof, is producing results 41% higher than the original design proposal 
and will bring in an income of £4500 - £5000 this year alone.  The return reflects FIT 
payments which are considerably higher than the current payments and those that 
apply to the other proposals and electricity exported back to the grid.  In addition, 
there is a further saving from reduced energy bills, in the region of £7,000 per 
annum, as a result of the electrical energy generated on site.   

Agenda Item 11

Page 49



CivicSustainableDevelopmentProposal.doc 

�

4. WHAT CAN BE DELIVERED 

4.1 The following table shows the agreed installation sites together with the installation 
costs and projected income levels over a 20 year period:- 

��

� �������� �	
�� �
�	���������� ��������

�������� ����������� �� ! "�� �� �!# $� %& ����

'�(� %��)������� ��$!*�"� ��#%!+#�� �&+����

,���		-�.	/
�� ���)������� ���!$$"� � �+! *#� %&�����

������0�����
���� *��)������� �+*!�#�� ��$�!�%�� #&�����

Total     203,312  898,711 

  
5. PROPOSALS 

5.1 The proposals give an opportunity for the Council to fully embrace renewable energy 
on four of its largest buildings.  Whilst accepting and understanding the Council’s 
current financial position, the Chief Executive in consultation with the Leader of the 
Council agreed that, due to the short lived opportunity to receive an income for the 
generation of the energy which, together with the anticipated saving in energy costs, 
proceeding with the proposal immediately would assist the Council’s overall revenue 
budgetary situation.  The level of CO2 emissions which would be saved is 
considerable and reaffirms this Council’s on-going commitment to carbon reduction. 

5.2 Installation costs of approximately £230,000 (installation costs plus a small 
contingency) would be required to install this level of photovoltaic array on the 
buildings listed above.  It has agreed that rather than incur additional borrowing 
requirements for the Council (approximately £10,000 per annum) the costs be met 
from the New Homes Bonus funding. 

5.3 It should be noted that the proposals are intended to fall within permitted 
development requirements and do not therefore need planning permission.   

RECOMMENDED 

1) That the actions of the Chief Executive in consultation with the Leader of the 
Council as detailed in this report be noted. 

  
2)  That further opportunities of sustainable photovoltaic arrays on Council assets 

be explored where schemes provide a similar return, and are sought by 
Property Managers. 

ASSISTANT DIRECTOR HOUSING & CONTRACTS 
CORPORATE MANAGER, DEMOCRATIC AND CIVIC SUPPORT  

  

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 (as amended)  
Background papers used in compiling this report: None 

Page 50



E
X

E
T

E
R

 C
IT

Y
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
 

  
  
 

E
X

E
C

U
T

IV
E

 
2
2
 J

A
N

U
A

R
Y

 2
0
1
3
 

A
P

P
O

IN
T

M
E

N
T

 O
F

 R
E

P
R

E
S

E
N

T
A

T
IV

E
S

 T
O

 S
E

R
V

E
 O

N
 O

U
T

S
ID

E
 B

O
D

IE
S

 

B
O

D
Y

 A
N

D
 T

E
R

M
 O

F
 

O
F

F
IC

E
P

R
O

P
O

S
E

D
R

E
P

R
E

S
E

N
T

A
T

IV
E

S
N

U
M

B
E

R
 O

F
 

M
E

E
T

IN
G

S
 P

E
R

 
A

N
N

U
M

 

T
E

R
M

S
 O

F
 R

E
F

E
R

E
N

C
E

R
o
y
a
l 
D

e
v
o
n
 a

n
d
 E

x
e
te

r 
H

e
a
lt
h
c
a
re

 N
H

S
 T

ru
s
t 

3
 y

e
a
rs

  

C
llr

 S
h
ie

l 
 3

1
.0

3
.2

0
1
3
 

4
 

T
o
 a

d
v
is

e
 a

n
d
 i
n
fl
u
e
n
c
e
 t
h
is

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
th

e
 

R
D

&
E

 a
s
 a

n
 N

H
S

 F
o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 T

ru
s
t.
  

    
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
C

O
R

P
O

R
A

T
E

 M
A

N
A

G
E

R
 D

E
M

O
C

R
A

T
IC

 A
N

D
 C

IV
IC

 S
U

P
P

O
R

T
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

1
5

 J
A

N
U

A
R

Y
 2

0
1

3
 

Agenda Item 12

Page 51



Page 52

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 13

Page 53

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 58

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	5 2013/14 Council Tax Base and NNDR1
	Council Taxbase 2013-14 Appendix A

	6 Housing Rents 2013/14
	7 Tackling Homelessness
	Tackling Homelessness Appendix 1

	8 Vacant Student Accommodation
	9 East Devon Local Plan Development Plan Document - Consultation
	10 Draft City Centre Strategy for Exeter 2013 - 2022
	Draft City Centre Strategy
	City Centre Strategy Milestones

	11 Civic Properties - Sustainable Development Proposal
	12 Appointment of Representatives to serve on Outside Bodies
	13 Future Role and Funding of the Growth Board Delivery Team

